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Revised Estimate (December 2017)
S.N. Item FC Portion LC Portion Total Equivalent
($ or €) (Rs.) in LC (Rs.)
A |Lot 1 Civil Works $154,190,451 | Rs.10,104,226,722 | Rs.21,697,806,726
B | Lot 2 Hydromechanical Works €14,397,216 Rs.746,846,475| Rs.2,186,280,088
C |Lot 3 Electromechanical Works $92,186,461 Rs.551,493,273 | Rs.7,119,778,647
D |Lot4T/LandS/S Works $20,227,792 Rs.771,312,668| Rs.2,565,315,519
$266,604,704
- =A+B+C+ . .
E Sub-Total (=A+B+C+D) €14,397.216 Rs.12,173,879,138 | Rs.33,569,180,980
F | Access Road and Infrastructure 0| Rs.1,960,854,750| Rs.1,960,854,750
G | Engineering and Construction Supervision $30,485,872| Rs.1,252,740,912| Rs.3,552,899,971
H |Owner's Administration Costs 0| Rs.1,717,782,545| Rs.1,717,782,545
I |Land Acquisition, Environmental Mitigation & Management 0 Rs.458,105,273 Rs.458,105,273
J |Sub-Total (=F+G+H+I) $30,485,872| Rs.5,389,483,481| Rs.7,689,642,540
K Total (=E+ $297,090,576 | & 17,563 362,619 | Rs.41,258 823,520
otal (FE+]) €14,397,216| o P05 8:31a95,85%
Additional Contingencies (2.5% of Items E, G & H above) in $7,427 264
L Revised Estimate €359.930 Rs.378,610,065 Rs.970,996,587
Additional Cost in Rupees (Rs.) incurred due to devaluation
M | of Rs. in comparison to Base Exchange Rates in items A to D 0 0| Rs 7,065,723,002
and G above in Revised Estimate
$7,427,264
=L+ . .
N Total (=L+M) €359.930 Rs.378,610,065| Rs.8,036,719,589
$304,517,841
=K+ . .
Grand Total (=K+N) €14,757.146 Rs.17,941,972,684 | Rs.49,295,543,109
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TqfbUeler TR qTRFETDT AT BEATSUDT 0% IR Ufts fFTSpTerT T G TR e Feprae! whiepfcr
78 eeRIeETept AT SRR FiseprerT TRUeDT Rt |

YT 009 FTeT ARG HfSATDT HETHDHT R AHT LI Teh! URTF-IehT HRUT Slerd] feetl 3ifer gt
TS SO SRR HUeblel deeplel AR ISBIe T+ TRl I8 | 20098 J2AR AT T~ 9Teh!
I Ted fafee e faffaa ufaffRieegR & Ricar T afifer @ ffd 2008/04/0 € a1 gA@T
J3PIC HUD! FEFT ATIR AR I1SHIS T+ TR fGeRUTT TR TR fiepferep! AT TUTeT RIcos ST IRl
TRYepT fRrY | ReelT wH~ag Aftfcrepr Seh fAfcrept (T SIRISHIETE Sifer ST, SrTfde ¥ 3 IR 3 a7
TR Y P 3:9.8:9 DT IAIUICHT AR d1Sthie T &M HYDMT AT fASaT Srfeafer S8 T
fafr=TugreTe faRIedT 37T BrRispHE™ BIYUIT WReblet Y: RieaT Gu=ag A AT 2008/9/0% HT qdew!

3t dmrehiRil gigaiaeR fofics



JaaTe AT 2008/0Y/0g AT HYD! HEHlT IR BRI T i = Aier ffce! wee SRy 98
TTDT §eT AIET FiehdT Sfeeiea TR TTe] 3MM..200Y4/9 g AT FATRT dTRI=T ¥ HAATHRUATS BATZDT Y
TfreTe IR FIShTe T STethiSd! BRI T~ TRY B, 2 31 €8 TRIS Y AT Hhar T BRI T~ qUH! |

SWRIE Goil TG AR THe-P" JfFreiic] AeATUep TAREHIED ¥ FYE-G° freiicl [T Iuerges
BEATIUD! NI AR FTSThIS HS T 3T.H.20094/9 & FHHHT <8R FHITHEDT TR YSiT Fehl HEHDD! © |

&.9. RRYES wifcrere T O R ol
foptm BT
TE-P (AEATIP)
9 | TTITef ferge ST 89 8,3%,9%,000 | ¥,38,9%,00,000/-
R | TSl IR DT fef. & £3,4%,000 €3,4%,00,000/-
3 IRTRG =T Py R R9,9¢,000 29,9¢,00,000/-
g | <IfSeT 4T IeU= 2 29,9¢,000 29,9¢,00,000/-
TIE-T (FANTLIRUT)
9 | AR Y DIYHT I ST bl PHARIED | 90.2¢ 9,¢3,8%,420 | 9,¢R,8%,4,000/-
R | DT R AUTeT fAgd UTferehRurehT HHaRIED 3.¢8 $0,§ 5,450 $0,§5,45,000/-
3 | SIS il TdTE T AT HHARIEw 2.¢¢ 30,8%,830 30,8%,8%,000/-
g | Slerar NieelTaT TR JTRI-<En 90 9,04,20,000 | 9,04,20,00,000/-
4 | HIATHROT Y 9,4¢,¢Y4,000 | 9,4¢,(4,00,000/-
STFHT 900 90,4%,00,000 | 90,4%,00,00,000/-

9.3 3BUT Uil TEae:

TSI BIIATIITbT TN Taeeh T K0T Yoil S PHTART FohY DT B, 90 3 K0T X 0.2 39 [SI=R,
TUTeT SRR BT fTHCSHT %€ 37, ARTND SRIT DISAT B.2 3 ¥ Ay dTHT HEAHT 2.2 376 3607
TII! ST FHIERT ¢ AR A= ffcrr 5o rsiiaes dgasber 87| AR PrIaaTa! ot
ferTeTeT effepet TqepT ST ST XehH 2.3 Y 37 R PRIS 9 TG ISDIHT ATERYT ATRSTC UTH &1 bH X Ieh
SRUEIC UTH Y THASIC AT 1 HUPlel o Wb fers fod MfeT 20€€/99/3 AT Ulel WRARAT SR

TRUSIHT T TREBR, AFTIRTGDT AT 206 €/92/9 BT ISHATC AT FHI0T e BT 3,99 3 ¢ IRIe

0T IUTeY RIS 0l 90T © |

ST feriter caeeelT SR ST, 2008/ Y T UTH 9UehT SBUIeh! fIeRuT FETdR I8! © |
$.9. SRUTCTCT eI P .
9. ~TUTeT TRDR (el fAgl UTferenRor J1ehet) 90,40,00,00,000/-
R THHAR! F59T DY 90,00,00,00,000/-
3. WESG?@QW%’&I%@ §,00,00,00,000/-
3. AFRD ST DY 2,00,00,00,000/-
4 NSRRI IE ?,00,00,00,000/-

OTHT: 30,40,00,00,000/-

2093 JRID HETYPHY TR AR PRUleT gd FerfRey ST AT AT & HUblel HLMMT TR FFA
IR YT g XA faxiTer SO T JATqdeh Aqeh! URUIEIET oo St T fHiseprer et 003 AT
P! UEEM IR Teoplel QR USil qoT9 P9 THUDI gaT STRINHT DRIFGId! oAl AT e
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%.9,§,4Y,93,000/- 3 YERIDH ACATERIIC AT FTARD GHUNTD (STder o 30T fofT MTereed wue! gaT
AT R FaETeTD AT FURITRIR SKUT HERIdh ARITERelTs &I 3501 SeTed TRTS o SIRIg TRYepT ot |

FEf, TSI geer Rerfaep faxiig faeror 7 T8 Iufdferer faeelt goret Jea giged! HRU Arrd o
93T ST HATT TR AT 2004/99/0% AT RIBIRG Afed Yer IRepT Hcrde IR 9d T AT STrTet
SFTHI YT & <RaUeDleT Sth XpHAT AT .2 31 €8 RIS AT KU aeATIT T U §aT Alef AT.d.2004/0§
R MM 3MA.R008/00 B AR PoT .90 I [TIT FIRATT T Fr-gHT Foalerd Afp! T
2004/99/93 BT FUITAR AP KU1 TeRiP ARATEHels FHITID SUHT 9T KU Iueled RIS o
TR UehIet AT fISIHT ST FERIeh TSR BeTthel g 27 KU Uy RIS VI TSGT JTH HUh © |

9.3 ISR fRT AT I ST TH! T

I PO SFRICT HIRIe ATHTeDIRN STATELT SRS FHUhT IRUMT R&ehlel 31T.9.008/9Y T el Iura
93 THDDI §aT 3T IATST Yo HYDT 7 |

T A e BYHT RIS FET0r FEaeell 2094 TG HRAIHE! FHT0r Sfaferep! 2Tt YfSTeur HuehT I
$.9Y 31 00 FRIS Yo ARY &0 BIR § 80 AR T.4Y4 3 Y4 FRIS 9o TRY & ETR 982 BUAT Capital Work in
Progress HT eI+ TRYD! & T ATeT SafRRT ReR Trufy d% $.% 3 R €& &R Y49 BT G9 YU & |

TRIID GADT DUHAT HHART T, FHT TR T AT 37T HaTe Gd JHd 9.4 PRIS 3% R 4 B9R 8¢
T T TUPT B | I AP oI g Pl T R ARl JaT ATET SRAT HUD! AT RIT I [pRwep]
T WS AThT T T T FETaer TRET A8 Tafi T ©.90 aRIs Q TRY £R BWR 4R BUAT
SHUITHD & 0! S |

3MA.2098/0Y DT TETIRIE T~ 5 RATIRIEDSYIC TTH HfideT AT 00y 3G FAD! =i
Rercfien! foavur (aRTera), AET BT FHIE qUBT 3MT.2008/0Y B FIHT T AGTHD! {JeR0T, T YaTg
fereror, gferafee aRacent faraRur 3 srRg erm =fifer o feequiiess a¥t ufciaear e TRUD! © |

9.8 I 3. 008/9Y AT T YeH NFRS 30U BrU-1ep] 3TTeleh feRures TR T+ ¥ feRTeT queHT AT &
A &I SRITh TRUSBT RIS el BUHT Trf-erd Weiells Capital Work in Progress dT @RgidhT
TRUDTT AT HICT Jecied UHT TS DS | Ul ACS ThlSrerad], GeTGRT 3.d.2003/08 Rg
fgpa TeATEre HaRS BuHT NFRS SAR iy fqeruess quR T O eawl o1 TReT gaT Al IR
eIy TeeROT TR T+ ShHHT <IRITIRIETVT SR FHI—T &7 Pa GIeTl HUe! B |

. AT PRATEITDT AT, ETAHTDT ST TG T&I THRITEE:
.9 @<H. 9 : fafre st
(@)  geIa o

ST P 9,093,000 F.I. Highe HRIALY 902,93 T, (]R.¢ %) T WD © | FSIRIDPT TS
& GReTE [N SIgWRi q1d, sco ¥ fSwumeva! Rifier FHfr orf sifam =RuHT gie! © |
T IS fop-TRHET gichT I8! diche BRIEH TRed! B |

(@) Gos8n X IeHh! FHr
o &Y gosd! U AETIRT SRR (HT3) BT oS WUSHT 003 B 94 TRy R A1)

e SRy ITRAR (HT4) BT Jos GUSHT 003 PIRTD Y TSRS o Tl BRI HYBHHT
AT 008 ARR 3 T A Goo WUS falfeTys! ©, 3T 5@ g (Breakthrough) HU®T | AT 9
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qTHT ¢4 .. o) g Gosd! T bR FFI~ Ul © | Al oS! HRY 9983 . guer
ithe ARSI BRI 7T 99¢ Y. (§R.¢%) TT TZADDI © |

o ISP G GoSE® (Pt ANE T 9¢.Y .M.) T PRI F¥u~ HUa! © |

® 303 L 3R 8.8 . SIRT YU el Ueed TITHE (Lower Penstock Shaft) BT F+qUT =T 1
2009 B 9 T T HIDI B |

® 399 Y. 3FAT R 8.8 Y. SIRT WYPT HIfIeell Uiecd TATFS (Upper Penstock Shaft) T F#UT =T
BRI 2008 GRIR 03 T U~ WU B |

M  [EETE S FEi
o ST T ¢ geT Jcew TAT AR  (Service Bay) AT G=qUf Siehe T+ BRI FFI~ HUH © |
® CTFAHHR FITH-HT Transformer Foundation T [ 9% FTT Pit 61T Structural Concrete T2IT 9%

Ic sAPEwIT Wall X Ceiling T @fehe T BRI F70~T 90T & | A1), GIS T Fire Pump Room &1
Hfohe T BRI i T~ YU B |

o IHRY 3 [EABRSIGIRSESS) PO oDl G~ B 099 IR ¢ T FI— HIID D B |

o TARY ATITcice! el FHUPR! J¥o=T Ul © | SR 3,000 M. AHT Tl FoSHT 008 I¥
R T Invert Concrete TIT Wall Concrete T+ SR FF0=T YU © |

° f%l'igﬁ Te ST icl Cltafﬁ ¥ (Main Access Tunnel) @Y Invert AT 31T Concrete T BRI TFI~T
TSHDD! B |

® AT TR (Valve Chamber) AT Rif¥el BRI 70~ WU © |

e 9T Control Building &1 @1 &1 doIT Structural Concrete PRI ¥+ YU © |

o Nl HHIHT R TATH HeTdGIe% TS SIRIH I8! §lel THIDILT T TeT SRy AT
I GleTlep! BT ©Yo . TUSH! gd fpTRD! A2 TAFEHTT ol RIS X ded-eed! B
SATRIBTY T~ DD © |

.3 TTH.  : FIESHBIDH PRI

e §iydl Radial Gate No. 9,2,3% 9% DI STSMHT BRI T “JQEﬁ © | Second Stage Embedded Part g%
SRAT: Guide Frames, Sill Beams, Wall Plates, D/S liners, Top Seal Beams 31 < S BRI Jv— "4Q35
% | Radial Gate No. 3 ¥ 8 @I Pipelines SIS ®1f YsR&®! & | Rubber Seal @ ®Rf U M5REH B |

® I SABIIT & deT Stop Log EFTEY € dcld Sill Beams ¥ TopSill BT SISH BRI TG~ JUD! & I
Stop Log &% B HIRED! © |

® Intake Block 3fcHid §3a< Intake Gate I ST BRI TFI~ HUD! © | Flap Gate @I Wall Plates ¥ Sill
Beam &I ST BRI TF0~ YUD! & | Intake Stoplogs E6d! TSM BRI T~ U © |

® Settling Basin 31~ F9 90 deT Outlet Gates @ First ¥ Second Stage Embedded Parts ST sill
beams, guide frames, top seal beams 3 P TS PR FEI~T ‘HQEﬁ ©l R dcr Bl Rubber Seal,
Hydraulic Hoist Support Beam DI TS BRI T~ qTHT © |

® Upper Penstock Shaft Lining STSTHAT o T TRINT TR 34 cH SERIE) Gantry Crane DI ST BRI T+

TR © | Upper Penstock Shaft @I Lower Bend &1 Welding ¥ Concrete 9 2 ST PRI A~ YU
O
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&

® | ower Penstock Shaft Lining STSThT < A TRIRT TR @Y T &FFcTen! Gantry Crane ) Rope Rewinding
PRI W%EFT | Lower Penstock Shaft @ Lower Bend @7 Welding ¥ Concrete 9 e STSM PR JHu—
ATH B |

° ﬁgﬁ‘ﬁiﬁ gfie 9. 9 R & H P! Turbine Outlet Gate @7 Sill Beam Td Guides & Tracks YNeT BRI
I~ ‘HQES % | doell UFRed WITFedh! Lower Bend ¥ UTddc Extension Pipes G2l Welding ¥ Concrete
AT TS BRI T~ TP B |

L ﬁw?}ﬁ?:{ 9 2Ry & HhT Penstock Branch Pipes DI SIS BRI FHI— ‘HQES O |

® Tail Race Flap Gate DI TSH BRI T~ 9UD! B | Rubber Seal, Hydraulic Cylinder X Yo BRI A S
Piping @ ®Rf TED! © |

.3 @TH. 3 : ABIIPA TAT FoIFCIDA BRI

Turbine

Tl feEad! Turbine BT ST BRI F-0— TgHHD! © |

Main Inlet Valve (MIV)

YUY GfTe EXoepT MIV STST BRI FHI~ WD © |

Cooling Water System

el gfeead! Cooling Water System STSTH BRI -~ HgD0D! © |

Powerhouse EOT Crane

ﬁ@?ﬁl@ﬂ & 75/15T &HdTdT g‘sf I Electric overhead traveling crane (EOT crane) ERD! SIS S
HTTATHT ATSHD D[ B |

Turbine Guide Bearing & Turbine Shaft

Wﬁgﬁw Turbine Guide Bearing and Turbibe shaft PRI FIT %ﬁ’»‘cﬁg |

Generator

TeRETSHD! HE IUHRUERd Hed TrUf e &aeh! Generator P TSI BRI FFI~ HgHHD] © |

Power Transformer

UTaRERSHTET 30 MVA &Y 98 aeT single phase power transformer &o®! SIS BRI HU~ HGADD] B |
LP Compressed Air System

Wﬁgﬁw Compressed Air System ) Compressor AT USUERDT To™ BRI T~ T3ADD| © |
Digital Governor

el gfeeaa! Digital Governor T TS 1 FFI~ HSHDhD! |

lllumination System

Fgof {Jﬁw Machine Hall, Generator Floor, Turbine Floor, MIV Floor ¥ Transformer Cavern HT

Permanent lllumination System DI TS BRI T HSHDD[ B | AR A TAHEHHT Emergency Ligiting Eal
gf STSM BRI T I85! B |

MSQV ¥ MSOV Bridge Crane

MSOV (Main Shut off Valve) @I SISH®I I§ HRIES T Testing I T~ YAPHHT © | MSOV Bl
Hydraulic Installation T Counterweight Installation BRI qIhT WD B |

GIS and GIS Hall

GIS SIS BRI TG~ Hgheh! T Testing BRI TI~ YThD! © |

AT T 3 T SIaeI-HepTahel SUPRUEw®T Dry Commissioning @ BRI FFG~T YSAha! S |
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1.8 ATH. ¥ : TARUTATST AT WA=

o TR-Rardt 220 P}, TRIRUT ATSHT 0T TR 920 AR He cTavexnd] ST AT =Y 923 ger
CTREHD! JURTHT ST PRI T~ TgADSD! © | TN 9REPT I F-0— YT Clavewored 494 IeT
TAFERAT Earthing T F¥0—~ Yg9$Gd] B | I IR FHI0T G799 9UhT </arew T diRe 3¢ fb.f. ACSR
Conductor T2IT % .. OPGW Conductor TR T BRI TG~ TgTHD! B |

o Ry fFmfor YR a7 Rawcl FaRea=ad! Control Room Building @1 Uf&cil deddTd! Gl @l B
T IUPT B | TART Gas Insulated Switchgears (GIS) Building 3T ST F#0T BRI T4~ 9$ Brick
Wall &7 SR 93T B | Faeeaqa! olft 31aeads IR acl 220/132 kV Power Transformer @1
Foundation @7 40T ®Rf @¥a—~ 9 A Power Transformer @ Pre-Erection Testing d¥I~T 9UH B |
BTl T ARSI 3D YUDT Retaining Wall 86 T 30 e fFmior R 7= 9g 31! 30 fiexa!
PRI ﬂs?%?ﬁ © | GT@[, YR 9T 220kV Transmission Line Gantry DI ST T DI FEI—~T ‘Wﬁ |

R.Y forsthices UaTef T STATSIATICTehT YREIT Sav2lT:

STRITSHT FATURPT SATRT STeaedes U+ fqsthices YaTRigae! AT X HUSRUT TRUDT GIHTERR ¥ TR eI Jeep! FREMT
Ve TUTel JAGRT HRED! © | AT, AT VGRS fFaTer BusT o T it JRET aRTh] T
PPT & ETeT T TRDR, T HATTIeD! HURITRIR SIS SITTRRR R THRIRHT AR Jav) 91 381 B |

3.  JMRNSHT BRITFaITHT SRIUBT hal TIRITED:
3.9 fafrcr miger soie R MRfe ST 3TvTa &a |
(@) TR feRor

facelt fafem ST gfe, qra/ATIa<l SMfDT PR AU FHIDT RN JATAISHIDT T AN Ifg
HUDlel ATATSIHID] WWWWW

(@) TR ST T TRUST TIREH

STRISTRIT 3TTeEs SRUIRTATEwT [SEeT(orT o SBUIehl TR SFRIee! AT deeblel e TS dig
BT JHTY T JACUDIICHT KU &JqeT TRV B |

AT SATIISFTDT LRI STRTC AT SR SRS DAFIIDT AT AT HUDT .90 3 HE STRTTHT
JM.d.20095/00 DI AT IRATAT TS Foic TAT HRIGTAT Tl ARBRATE T2 37 2T K0T UTH T+ TR
TR TRUET gaT AT fISHT UTeT TRBR o1t T AT 37ef FATAIHT IRATIIT qoie IR BADhe T
SIREERCHRSIRIERCIR NGRS

T R AT B.¢ IR AN HFAT FsaTeId ARRTDT FURRIR ATAHHT KU TSI ACATERAT
HTUTICTED o1 &TERpTIoR ST AT TRUST §aT AT Fa-gHT IRIPRER d1el BeTthel Hs HIragall HTH HUDHT

EIEIREIRSIRIERCIRISCEa R
3.3 facelY sifirhgsmen! RIRAT AT 1 SSTTSTAHT WHT YU |
(@) THRATDI fqaRuT

BIeTh! 579 BT o] U <RI T IRASHMT HRRT deRIe 9 ST SRR T2l 0 T MR §F T
TG HRUT RISAT AFTRBEwD! Visa Extension ®T TR ST SSTd UTS HfhUehT B |
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(@) R Y T TRUBT GIRIEH
I VIR TR SATITS THTIAIT DT AR 57 ISR FAT AFHTRD GRET T 39D

AEINTDT TR SFRIY TRYDI S |
3.3 TAT YRAGT SUBRVIGE AT HRIFT THEIT 3T IUDBRUT SIS BRF THTFIT HGEhT |
() TR fdavur

TS [RTeT fFrguTeiies Need! WTSIHRaRY TRDBICHHD! HSh JFolDRUl PR TRISeblet JIITTHT
Ith GSDHD] IR WUSEHH] TSRS daidl A1 T HIC! YURDT DRU FSeh HERT &7 ST SRl
HRUCT T JeTl WRT AHFED [T R Ueed gy (3.§ MLamy ¥ Y ff.ers) garl 7 wio-rg
IRED! B | Ith GGoIDRU DRID! T Tl ShaRewe! JIelbRUl &R FHI d=< ! I BT D IO
TR Uf fEeTRGRciepT bR Gt CTiT Y WUSHT JATANHT FEST § Febepl B |

(@) R Y T TRUDBT GIRIE

STRAISHTT Feeferd &1 iR Td Foa e GepIefH HUSRUT TR FYUl qTsuened!
GApIATERY SRS gaTl BRI G~ HgHDD! B | 3T A T diehl TeehT UIgueaed! owTg
2.4 foeR 91 & HUDIeT Pie TS & SRITDT © |

3.8 T Uved S8 T B fSelTs wsvaa! |
@) D! faRur

JT 7.  SPER Texmaco Railway and Engineering Ltd. DT PRIGFAT HIIR UTZUDT TT SHDT THIRIDT
PRUEIC STRATSIDT FIHT SHRIAGh T YTl BRI G8acT Vertical Shaft 59T U UTgY SIS B
FITaTE. rallyoreh BOHT TRITEr & TATehUepl | o1C F. X SFplehl ShaR Texmaco of Uece Uigd SIS
ﬂ't:fEﬁT 31fciReh Headworks, Bhainse Intake, Powerhouse ¥ Tailrace Outlet dT Gate, Stoplog, Trashrack
SRTRIT 3T SIS BRIEHIHT RFHARY foTua! doIT Penstock Pipe afgd Der Jaaeier Hydromechanical

IYPRUIERRDT Fabrication HT HERED! GaT ST HFSIIT e Ui+ el BDoIg el R |
(@) TR FHIYME T TRUDT T80

e .  BRAET YSRIIAT (PQ) HT BIC FHT 9UhT I TSP oIC H. 3 ShaR Andritz Hydro IT Ich
URedh Uy SIS T Fr=eHT It AT Sl SFTIfS §@T8 Andrtiz Hydro AT T U9Red
UTSUERHd] Repair @1, Installation PRI, TTIT G-I b1 FHID! ATHT AT eh TEhR] TR f2rT |

AT FEpry ATAR <l 9. 3 @ IPER Andritz Hydro AT 2nd August 2018 HT Supplementary
Agreement dIc  Penstock Pipe ERD! Repair BRI H¥G~1 ﬂgﬂib_dﬁ T g e g1 gidhT Lower
Penstock, bifurcation pipe aNfepT TS e §E|'Fﬁ BRI Tt afy WWFI'E NI D E RN
9+ TR Texmaco Railway and Engineering Ltd @I AT Andrtiz Hydro HqT7 January 2019 HT
uef Frsiian W™ B o HIReD! © |

TR SRS BRI e .2 BT SHER Texmaco, A< .3 BT 3HER Andritz Hydro I I &0 faer 7
January 2019 HT qUT Supplementary Agreement 3R <fc .2 BT IPSReT 399 fyex sFal
HTfIeel! URed UTST X 71 .3 & 3haR Andritz Hydro @ 393 TR el deall UFRed UTguad! Sifeel
PRIEH JSHIS I ST T FEHd §Jol DS goll e I Tl B | EleT Sth §d SharRewvel
A1 BRI LodTcl! TRUMHT DT [GeTTs TegReed! SRITAT Ul Seh et fersielm for feremy TRyt © |
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$.  HEITHT PHARIBT TaTATI:

AIRIEAT TTPIRIT e ARISHIeNs Taaelt Yoit ST fIery 77 Jeedel TATIHT HUSHI I BT
STRAISHTDT TR SFEAIDT TR <RgT ~uTel e[ HIRpRUETE SIS aveIae Tt =T gafer
{07 BRAT Hefi RfE BTN WIS DRIV X&ehT uTel fAg UTfRIARUMhT HHTRT ¥ HraIETe Fgdh TRYDT
T BRI FHINH SFT 94 ¢ ST PHARIES HRIRG 8T B |

KIEESH

HERID AR

AR TR | e | whe | wears |

UTeT fIEL HTTEIPRUIETE hToTT TCs AUl Q¢ 4 99 3 39
HHIIGRT TR g - 2 - - 2

FRR M Fgeh g B 'R 8¢ 99¢
SATATGRY - - 9 - 9

STHAT 34 R &8 Yo 94¢

FEOAT X PEAT ST TN HITee! JTTpIelt STeldeld JAAISHT Brifad= JAafip! ATl Amaedd
SIeTTchep! SATRT ST 20 9 SFTehT SRdw< Tehel 8D UTet fIegt FTEeRUTe Wi STYDT BHARIEwsIe J1
SRS HRAFEIT T AALAD SHLIfh AYT HUDT gal Foaleld AMRID! TEIBmT Wit Jar e
SPTERHAT Goell TRIHTENE I FERIBRIRAT JfeehIeT AT STRI-aTATS Ureiffiehar o Smdfeie ©uHT RN
AT ¥ FAARRET ST TSUDT B | AT, SRS BRIFGITD! AR W axaar Te [ i
PRIBT AT IMITLYD Ge STk 3T h TehT TAEATHT AT B AT foTs BT oG- TRUD! B |

BT SRS fA1YeT, Selacial, HepTidel PRISH HaTeTTHT ! UM -uTe] e[ HTTHRUEE B
qlfehs BRIRT PpaT TTfaTer SfeIgpeiess dgdT HUe! SFaRRATHT WTTRIPRUAT  fodiT 7+ TRUST gaT JRaTC SRS ]
ST THIE O Al e affae ol W R qesw T STefdg SIS M R W UTH
FHARIES @CTs o uTel fIga MIfeeRues SFRIY T TRUST © | JART AR TR qHINH -uTel faegd
TTRPRUETE FHARIER WIS ARSI BRI FaTe DUl HaTerd T+ AN HIRED! © |

y. Al ArTeTelt TR STATSTeT WM BRI TUT HFIDT W&t AT Ta
PRIHH:

(@) ARISHT FHUET T 8 9T ACsd i A9 @RS TSI T 93 FH{0r BRigss FsdTer Heead]
B | RIS 9 cIcaed! TRE TEIaE®s Td I 2093 BT SR AfGTRIHT FFI=T MgHP J4Tq
SRS T Ul BRI A1 09¢, FF Fo= T+ F1&d FeReT TRUDT R | deoeTd fAIfT dRuswer
TET JTIISHT T T RIS de Ts F7qul 14701 ¥ S8 $rf f$8=R 209 O T T Rt 7T
FRIATfTdT TR TRUST for |

20092 ARIPT Y+ X DI YS! AATATATS IS T @lc 7. 9 IPaARe 3T IPaREHAT
g TR T 29 August 2016 HT Q?ﬁicrﬁ FAIATeTdT (Integrated Time Schedule, ITS) 9T TRpT
for | AT weeTferepT YT T RIS TTRUbT g8 acT dehfetd THAITBIERTE] T3l
AHAATIDTT 30 June 2018 ¥ Water On T, ufeell gfieare fAfr 15 July 2018 i gl Seure go
TR ¢ IcT JACERdTe 12 December 2018 o el Scuter Go TR 16 FerRur TRuepT R |
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited

1. Report on the Financial Statements:

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Financial Position of M/s Upper Tamakoshi
Hydropower Limited as of Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018), Statement of profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in
Equity attached thereto, for the year ended onthat date and a summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes.

2 Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting pelicies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

3 Auditors’ Responsibility:

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
reasonable basis for our audit opinion.

4. Basis of opinion:

The following are some of
operating result of the com
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4.1. Capital Work in Progress:

411 The details of land along with land ownership title deed under Capital Work in Progress
(previously under property, plant and equipment) amounting to Rs.4.09 crore were not made
available.

4.1.2 Physical Verification Committee has carried out physical verification of assets of F/Y 2073/74 and
submitted its report on 2074/10/28 and as per said report, assets like building, civil construction
and other assets amounting to Rs.3.60 crore has been impaired/damaged (mainly due to
devastating earthquake in Baisakh 2072), the impact of which has not been given in the financial
statement. As a result, the loss is understated by such amount.

4.1.3 Rs.23.37 lakh was paid to KEC International for insurance & bank guarantee fee without
obtaining invoice from the contractor.

4.2 Other Current Assets:

421 Advances paid to District Development Committee/Office, Dolakha for Rs.43.43 lakh, District
Administration Office, Dolakha for Rs.112.00 lakh and other various parties of Rs. 18.32 lakh
aggregating of Rs.173.75 lakh outstanding from earlier years have not been settled during the
year too.

4.2.2 The books of accounts of the company reflects Letter of Credit (LC) Bank margin of Rs.21.98
crore at the year ended 2075, whereas balance confirmation issued by the bank for LC Bank
margin is Rs.20.16 crore only, leaving unreconciled LC margin balance of Rs.1.82 crore.

4.2.3 NEA has provided loan to Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) staffs (staff deputed to the company
from NEA) through company and total loan recoverable from staff is Rs.95.26 lakh whereas
amount payable to NEA in respect of this loan is showing Rs.61.56 lakh only, leaving
unreconciled amounts of Rs.33.70 lakh.

4.3 Income Tax Act/ VAT Act:

4.3.1  As per section 88 of the Income Tax Act 2058, interest having source in Nepal is subject to 15%
withholding tax (WHT). However, WHT on interest of loan provided by Government of Nepal
(GoN) through Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) has been deducted only to the extent of
difference of 2.5% that NEA retains (i.e. 10.5% paid by UTKHPL less 8% payable by NEA to
GoN) citing the reason that income of government is exempt from tax. As the company's
obligation to pay interest @ 10.50% to NEA, TDS should have been deducted on Gross interest
amount. Total interest on such loan amounts to Rs.103.57 crore during the year.

4.3.2 The company and Consultant J/\V Norconsult AS and Lahmeyer International GmbH( JVNL) have
agreed vide Contract Addendum No 1 that the company and Consultant will bear one third
(1/3™) and two third (2/3") of local tax beyond USD 2.00 million respectively on the account of
withholding tax (WHT). Accordingly the company has reimbursed withholding tax (WHT) and
booked it as consultancy expenses under CWIP. As this is additional cost to the company in
relation to acquiring consultancy service, Tax at source should have been deducted by grossing
up the amount as per the agreement and obtaining VAT invoice for such expenses. The
company has reimbursed Rs 4.06 crore without deducting TDS and obtaining VAT invoice for
such amounts upto end of F.Y 2074/75.

4.4 Procurement and contract with contractors:
4.41 Variation Order:

As per Financial Administration By-law (FAB), any Variation Order above 15% of contracted
amount should be approved by the Board.

In case of Civil Contract Lot No 1, the total value of variation order amounting to Rs 362.28 crore
(27.09% of the contracted value) has been done till end of F/Y 2074/75. However the approval
of the Board in excess of 15% limit of the contract value amounting to Rs 161.71 crore has not
been obtained. -

i6d of the‘.contractors such as Sinhohydro Corporaticri _Lic'i-., b '.‘_v\-\.
eﬁ@gjjbm\b d KEC International Ltd. are expired and not renewed. ..

442 The extended contract
M/s Texmaco Rail and E
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A separate Management Letter highlighting audit observations has been issued on May 14, 2019
to the management for improvement of controls and systems.

Report on requirement of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory matters:

We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of such books.

In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income ,Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity with
Explanatory Notes dealt with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2063 except matters referred to at Para 4.7 and are in agreement with the books
of accounts maintained by the company.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the audit,
we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the Company
have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts excepting in regard to compliance of
NAS as stated below, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the
company.

NFRS - NAS read with IFRIC 12, non- adoption and non- compliance:

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has made Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) mandatorily applicable to all entities having public accountability with effect
from Financial Year 2073/74. However, the company has adopted its financial statement based
upon Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) from current year.

As per NFRS, in following situation, in preparation of Financial Statement, IFRIC 12 should be
followed:

i. The Grantor Controls or Regulates what services the operator must provide with the
infrastructure, to whom it must provide them(services), and at what price; and

ii. The Grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entittement or otherwise- any significant
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the terms of the agreement.

The grantor includes public sector entity together with any regulators acting in the public interest.

As per Company's assessment of IFRIC 12- Service Concession Arrangement is not applicable.
In justification of this the company has stated as under:

« The company sells electricity to Nepal Electricity Authority at price independent of the price
charged by NEA to general public. NEA, for the ultimate sale of electricity is bound by the
rates determined by Electricity Tariff Commission set up by the government, whereas NEA
purchases electricity on the basis of different commercial agreement with the power
producers. Electricity Tariff Commission does not determine the rate at which NEA
purchases or has to purchase electricity from the power producers. There have been
instances where the rates charged by NEA to the general public is lower than it paid to
some of the power producers.

e The company does not receive any specific concession for the use of the natural resource.
The company has to pay to the government for the use of the natural resources in the form
of royalty.

e The company under P
directly to the general p
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* Though the project is to be transferred to the government at the end of the license period
the legal title of the project is with the company, including the control of access to the
project site. In addition, the company has right to pledge the assets as lien for availing
finances from financial institutions.

4.7.3 Company is setting up the project under the license granted by Department of Electricity
Development (DoED) under Ministry of Energy and is required to supply power to NEA pursuant
to agreement with NEA and at a rate determined under the contract. The company is bound by
rate contract between NEA and the Company as per Agreement including any rate variation.
Further in terms of License, significant residual interest in the infrastructure lies with Government.

The company is bound by price agreement between NEA and Company, PPA having been
endorsed by Licensing Authority (Department of Electricity Development) and being inseparable
condition of the Power Generation License issued by Grantor, price control by Grantor is
established as prescribed in IFRIC 12. Further, the grantor controls significant residual interest
at the end of terms of the agreement, in terms of IFRIC 12, amongst others having continuing
right of use throughout the period of the arrangement and restricting operator's practical ability to
sell or pledge the infrastructure.

Accordingly, in our opinion, IFRIC 12 is applicable and its non-compliance has implications on
recognition, measurement and disclosure of items impacting the financial statements. Since,
IFRIC 12 has not been complied with, first time adoption of NAS is also incomplete. Impact of the
non-adoption/non-compliance on the financial statement has not been ascertained by the
management and is not ascertainable at our end.

5. Auditors’ Opinion:

In our opinion, subject to the observations made in and impact of the above mentioned
paragraphs 4.1,4.2, 4.3, 4.4 and non-adoption/non-compliance of NAS 11 in regard to IFRIC 12
as mentioned in Paragraph 4.7 above, the Financial Statements, read together with the
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts forming part of the accounts, give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018)
and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with applicable Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and comply with provisions of
the Companies Act, 2063.

S o 1 et TN

CA. Bijay Kumar Agrawal
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

P

Kathmandu
Date: May 14, 2019

T.P. Adhikari & Associates 4 B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Gyaneshwor, Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NPR
As at As at As at
Particulars Notes Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
(July 16, 2018) (July 15, 2017) (July 16, 2016)

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets:
Property, plant and equipment 7 9,366,851 9,875,246 10,875,234
Capital work-in-progress 7 55,557,062,142 45,161,902,034 37,140,914,328
Deferred tax Assets 7 - - -
Total Non-Current Assets 55,566,428,993 45,171,777,279 37,151,789,563
Current Assets:
Inventories 7 18,195,219 9,029,344 34,484,012
Cash and cash equivalents 8 228,744,171 690,040,207 964,402,947
Other current assets 8 1,524,719,038 1,495,715,172 1,542,268,498
Total Current Assets 1,771,658,428 2,194,784,722 2,541,155,457
Total assets 57,338,087,422 47,366,562,002 39,692,945,020
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity:
Equity share capital 8 7,942.500,000 7,942.500,000 7,942.500,000
Retained Earnings 8 (554,609,901) (438,522,703) (411,159,502)
Total Equity 7,387,890,099 7,503,977,297 7,531,340,498
Non-Current Liabilities:
Long Term Loans 8 30,500,000,000 27,383,418,093 23,487,946,771
Provisions 7 10,965,535 7,892,187 5,668,076
Deferred tax liabilities 7 - - -
Interest on Long term loan 7 14,425,847,349 10,004,744,194 6,779,092,436
Total Non-Current Liabilities 44,936,812,885 37,396,054,474 30,272,707,283
Current Liabilities:
Short Term Loans 7 1,900,000,000 - -
Other Current Liabilities 7 3,113,384,439 2,466,530,231 1,888,897,239
Total Current Liabilities 5,013,384,439 2,466,530,231 1,888,897,239
Total Equity and Liabilities 57,338,087,422 47,366,562,002 39,692,945,020
Explanatory notes form integral part of these financial statements.

Mukunda Adhikari Suresh Raj Khakurel Bigyan Prasad Shrestha

Account Chief Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directots
Lekhanath Koirala Jagadishwar Man Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Member Member Member
Dilliram Adhikari Tulasi Prasad Gautam Kul Man Ghising
Member Member Chairman

Auditors
As per our report of even date

CA. T.P.Adhikari
T.P. Adhikati & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. B.K. Agrawal
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2076/01/15
Place: Kathmandu
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UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Gyaneshwor, Kathmandu
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NPR
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
(July 16, 2018) (July 15, 2017)
Revenue 7.14 - -
Generation Expenses 7.15 - -
Gross profit - -
Depreciation 7.1 (2,871,195) (3,009,162)
Other income 7.16 303,957 568,371
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) 7.17 (46,294,385) 20,160,728
Administrative and other operating expenses 7.18 (53,905,498) (44,707,235)
Profit/(Loss) from Operation (102,767,121) (26,987,298)
Finance Income 7.19 - -
Finance Costs 7.20 (202,048) (149,258)
Profit/ (Loss) Before Bonus and Tax (102,969,169) (27,136,556)

Income Tax Expense
Current tax - -
Defertred tax income/ (expense) - -
Net Profit for the year (102,969,169) (27,136,556)
Other comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
i. Re-measurement (losses) / gains on post employment - -
defined benefit plans
i. Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - -
iii. Tax relating to items that will not to be reclassified to - -
profit or loss
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax - -

Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax (102,969,169) (27,136,556)
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each
Basic Earnings per share - NPR (1.30) (0.34)
Diluted Earnings per share - NPR (1.30) (0.34)
Explanatory notes form integral part of these financial statements.
Mukunda Adhikari Suresh Raj Khakurel Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
Account Chief Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directors
Lekhanath Koirala Jagadishwar Man Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Member Member Member
Dilliram Adhikari Tulasi Prasad Gautam Kul Man Ghising
Member Member Chairman
Auditors

As per our report of even date

CA. T.P.Adhikari CA. B.K. Agrawal
Date: 2076/01/15 T.P. Adhikari & Associates B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Place: Kathmandu Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Gyaneshwor, Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NPR
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
(July 16, 2018) (July 15, 2017)
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year (102,969,169) (27,136,556)
Adjustments for:
Loss/(gain) on sale of assets held for sale - -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2,871,195 3,009,162
Amortization of Intangible Assets - -
Depreciation Being Revenue Portion of Grant Aid - -
Provision for employee benefits - -
Provision for Bonus - -
Finance income - -
Impairement of Intangible asset - -
Finance cost - -
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries and associates - -
Loss/ (gain) on sale of Property, plant and equipment - -
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade receivables - -
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets - -
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets (29,003,860) 46,553,326
(Increase)/ Dectrease in Inventoties (9,165,8706) 25,454,669
Increase / (Dectease) in trade payables - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Provision 3,073,348 2224111
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 646,854,208 577,632,992
Cash generated from operations
Bonus paid - -
Income Tax Paid - -
Prior year adjustment (655,200) (226,645)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 511,004,640 627,511,058
B. CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
(Increase)/ Decrease in Project work-in-progress (10,395,160,108) (8,020,987,705)
Proceeds from sale of Assets Held for Sale - -
Interest Received - -
(Increase)/ Dectease Investment in Subsidiaties and Associates - -
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment (2,362,801) (2,009,173)
Purchase of Intangibles - -
Grant Aid received/ (refunded) - -
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - -
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (10,397,522,909)  (8,022,996,879)
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C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in share capital - -
Borrow/ (Repayment) of Long term loan 3,116,581,907 3,895,471,323

Borrow/ (Repayment) of Short term loan 1,900,000,000 -

Dividend paid - -

Interest paid - -

Share Issue Expenses (12,462,829)

Interest during the Construction subject to Capitalization 4,421,103,156 3,225,651,757
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 9,425,222,234 7,121,123,080

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net foreign exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents - -

OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 690,040,207 964,402,947

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 228,744,171 690,040,207

Explanatory notes form integral part of these financial statements.

Mukunda Adhikari Suresh Raj Khakurel Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
Account Chief Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directors

Lekhanath Koirala Jagadishwar Man Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Member Member Member

Dilliram Adhikari Tulasi Prasad Gautam Kul Man Ghising
Member Member Chairman

Auditors

As per our report of even date

CA. T.P.Adhikari CA. B.K. Agrawal
Date: 2076/01/15 T.P. Adhikari & Associates B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Place: Kathmandu Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Gyaneshwor, Kathmandu

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018)

Amount in NPR
. Retained earnings and reserves
Particulars qug:?};ist:;‘ re Share Genera;g Retained Total
Premium Reserve Earnings

Balance as on 01 Shrawan 2072 7,942,500,000 - - (1,684,860,877) 6,257,639,123
Profit for the year - - (126,501,688) (126,501,688)
Other comprehensive income - - - - .
Balance as on 31 Ashad 2073 7,942,500,000 - - (1,811,362,565) 6,131,137,435
Adjustments/ Restatements - - - 1,400,203,063 1,400,203,063
Balance at 1 Shrawan 2073 7,942,500,000 - - (411,159,502) 7,531,340,498
Profit for the year - - - (27,136,5506) (27,136,5506)
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - (27,136,556) (27,136,556)
Dividends to shareholders - - - - -
Prior Year’s Adjustment - - - (226,045) (226,645)
Balance at 1 Shrawan 2074 7,942,500,000 - - (438,522,703) 7,503,977,297
Profit for the year - - - (102,969,169) (102,969,169)
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Share Issue Expenses - - - (12,462,829) (12,462,829)
Total comprehensive income - - - (115,431,998) (115,431,998)
Dividends to shareholders - - - - -
Prior Yeat’s Adjustment - - - (655,200) (655,200)
Balance at 32 Ashad 2075 7,942,500,000 - - (554,609,901) 7,387,890,099

Mukunda Adhikari Suresh Raj Khakurel Bigyan Prasad Shrestha

Account Chief Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directors
Lekhanath Koirala Jagadishwar Man Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Member Member Member
Dilliram Adhikari Tulasi Prasad Gautam Kul Man Ghising
Member Member Chairman

Auditors
As per our report of even date

CA. T.P.Adhikari
T.P. Adhikari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. B.K. Agrawal
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2076/01/15
Place: Kathmandu
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UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Gyaneshwor, Kathmandu
Explanatory Notes- F.Y. 2074/75 (2017 /18)

1. Reporting Entity:

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) has established an autonomous company Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower
Limited (UTKHPL) as an executing agency for the development and implementation of the hydro power
Project. It is a limited liability company having its registered office in Kathmandu. It has been registered
under Companies Act, 2063 in Nepal on Falgun 25, 2063 (March 09, 2007). Registrar of Companies allowed
company to initiate its transaction since Baisakh 12, 2065. Its site office and hydropower plant, under
construction, is located at Bigu Village Municipality, Ward No. 1, Lamabagar, Dolkha.

The majority share (51%) of the Company is held by four public entities, namely, Nepal Electricity Authority
(NEA), Nepal Telecom (INTC), Citizen Investment Trust (CIT) and Rastriya Beema Sansthan (RBS). NEA
has 41% stake, NTC has 6% and CIT & RBS each has 2% stake in the Company. Similarly, general public
and residents of dolakha district are holding 15% and 10% share respectively. The remaining 24% share has
been held by contributors in Employees Provident Fund (EPF), NEA & Company’s staffs and staffs of
financial institutions providing loans.

The Upper Tamakoshi Hydroelectric Project is the national pride project and when it is completed, it will be
the largest hydroelectric plant in Nepal. The Project is entirely financed from the domestic financial
institutions and companies. The Company has planned to develop hydropower projects in Tamakoshi River
basin as below:

° First Stage: Upper Tamakoshi Hydroelectric Project (UTKHEP) - Peaking Run-of-River (PRoR) type
° Second Stage: Diversion of Rolwaling River to the UTKHEP intake pond

This company has been established as Special Purpose Project Vehicle (SPPV) company to execute 456 MW
Upper Tamakoshi Hydroelectric Project (UTKHEP). The company's main line of business involves
development of hydropower projects including detailed feasibility, construction and operation. At present,
this company is developing 456 MW Upper Tamakoshi Hydroelectric Project. Approximately 96.4% of its
physical progress has been accomplished, and this project is expected to be commissioned by F/Y 2076/077.

This company is also developing 22 MW Rolwaling Khola HEP in near future. Apart from its own
generation, this project will divert additional water to head works of UTKHEP thereby increase 169 GWh of
additional dry season energy of UTKHEP.

Financial year of this company starts from 01 Shrawan every year and ends on Ashad end of next year.
Financial Statements of the company comprises Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts.

2. Basis of Preparation and measurement
2.1.  Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of Nepal (ICAN). The Financial
Statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentational requirement of the
Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal. These financial statements for the year ended Ashad 32, 2075 are the first
financial statements of the company which has been prepared as per NIRSs. All the financial statements
issued prior to this period are prepared in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards (NASs). The
financial statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 and the opening Balance Sheet as at Shrawan 01, 2073
have been restated in accordance with NFRS for comparative information. Reconciliations and explanations
of the effect of the transition from Previous GAAP to NFRS on the Company’s Equity, Statement of
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Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash
Flows are provided in Note no. 8.

2.2.  Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the
opening NFRS Balance Sheet as at Shrawan 01, 2073 being the ‘date of transition to NFRS’.

2.3.  Presentation of Financial Statements and Presentation Currency:

Assets and liabilities, wherever applicable, are bifurcated in Current and Non-Current based on their
respective maturity as well as the company’s normal operating cycle.

The functional and presentation currency of the company is Nepalese Rupee (NPR) which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company operates and all values are rounded to the nearest
rupee except when otherwise indicated.

24. IFRIC 12 Considerations:

IFRIC (International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee) 12 gives guidance on the accounting by
operators for public-to-private service concession arrangements. This interpretation sets out general
principles on recognizing and measuring obligations and related rights in service concession arrangements.
The company has considered applicability of IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement, issued by
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) for preparation and presentation of financial statements.
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Limited, after due consideration has not applied IFRIC 12 while preparing
these financial statements on the following grounds:

° The company sells electricity to Nepal Electricity Authority at price independent of the price charged
by NEA to general public. NEA, for the ultimate sale of electricity is bound by the rates determined
by Electricity tariff commission set up by the government, whereas NEA purchases electricity on the
basis of different commercial agreement with the power producers. Electricity Tariff Commission
does not determine the rate at which NEA purchases or has to purchase electricity from the power
producers. There have been instances where the rates charged by NEA to the general public is lower
than it paid to some of the power producers.

° The company does not receive any specific concession for the use of the natural resource. The
company has to pay to the government for the use of the natural resources in the form of royalty.

° The company under Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) sells energy to NEA and not directly to the
general public.

° Though the project is to be transferred to the government at the end of the licence period the legal title
of the project is with the company, including the control of access to the project site. In addition, the
company has right to pledge the assets as lien for availing finances from financial institutions.

2.5.  Financial Period:

The company prepares financial statements in accordance with Nepalese Financial year. The financial year
starts from Shrawan 01 and ends on Ashad end of next calendar year. The corresponding dates for the
English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Financial Nepalese Calendar Gregorian Calendar
Statement Date / Period Date / Period
Reporting Date Ashad 32, 2075 July 16, 2018
Comparative Reporting Date Ashad 31, 2074 July 15, 2017
Reporting period Shrawan 01, 2074 - Ashad 32,2075 |July 16,2017 — July 16, 2018
Comparative Reporting Period Shrawan 01, 2073 — Ashad 31,2074 |July 16, 2016 - July 15, 2017
Date of Transition to NFRS Shrawan 01, 2073 July 16, 2016
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2.6. Basis of Measurement:

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for certain material items that
have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant NFRS and explained in the ensuing policies
below.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The Company makes certain
estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods, except otherwise
stated. Specific accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the note, wherever have
been applied along with the nature and effect of the changes of accounting estimates, if any. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year primarily includes: -

3.1.  Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such life is
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life,
based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly,
depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

3.2.  Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves
management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and
regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to
changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Since, hydropower plant is still in the process of construction and all the expenditure which are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction or production of the assets are shown as Capital Work in Progress
(CWIP) hence test of impairment of asset is not done for those assets.

3.3.  Contingencies:

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to
quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
recognised.

34. Fair Value Measurements:

The management determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuators to
perform the valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external valuators to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
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3.5.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets:

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

New standards in use but not yet effective

Standards as pronounced by the Accounting Standards Board Nepal (ASB Nepal) has been used in the
preparation of financial statements. Any departure from the requirements of NIRS, if any, has been
separately disclosed in the Notes to Accounts/ Explanatory Notes.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued
by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
ASB Nepal incorporates within NFRS.

New standards and interpretation not adapted

There have been amendments to the standards issued by IASB and applicability of the new standards have
been notified for IFRS. These amendments and new standards become applicable only when ASB-Nepal
pronounces them.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9
also replaces the existing ‘incurred loss’ impairment approach with an expected credit loss approach, resulting
in earlier recognition of credit losses.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. The new standard introduces the core
principle that revenue must be recognized when the goods or services are transferred to the customer, at the
transaction price. Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognized, and any
discounts or rebates on the contract price must generally be allocated to the separate elements. When the
consideration varies for any reason, minimum amounts must be recognized if they are not at significant risk
of reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be capitalized and amortized over the
period when the benefits of the contract are consumed.

Financial instruments, leases and insurance contracts are out of scope of IFRS 15, and so this standard is not
expected to have a significant impact on the company. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 01, 2018.

IFRS 16 Leases

On January 13, 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 to replace IAS 17 Leases. The new standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases result in the lessee obtaining the
right to use an asset at the start of the lease and, lease payments are made over time, also obtaining financing.
Accordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required
by IAS 17 and instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model. Lessees will be required to recognize: (a) assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the undetlying asset is of low value; and (b)
depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. IFRS 16
substantially carties forward lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

The amendment will require disclosure of a reconciliation of movements in liabilities arising from financing
activities. These revised requirements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2017.
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Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendment has clarified the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on
debt instrument. The entity will have to recognize deferred tax assets for unrealized losses that arise as a
result of discounting cash flows of debt instruments at market interest rates, even if it expects to hold the
instrument to maturity and no tax will be payable upon collecting the principal amount. The economic benefit
embodied in the deferred tax asset arises from the ability of the holder of the debt instrument to achieve
future gains (unwinding of the effects of discounting) without paying taxes on those gains. These revised
requirements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2017.

6. Significant Accounting Policies:
The significant accounting policies of company are explained below:
6.1.  Property, Plant and Equipment:

On transition to NFRS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at Ashad 31, 2073 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on Sharwan 01, 2073, except
otherwise stated in the notes to accounts.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the
component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the
remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, except otherwise stated in the notes to accounts.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets
determined by the management. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged on pro-rata basis in the
year of purchase. The company has a policy to charge the depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment on
Straight Line Method assuming that the value of assets will be NPR 1 at the end of economic life of the asset.
Useful life and Depreciation on property plant and equipment are as under:
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S.N. Assets Block Estimated Useful Life | Depreciation Rate
1. Self-owned and used Land NA NA
2. Office Building 30 years 3.33%
3. Residential Building 30 years 3.33%
4. Other Civil Construction Work 30 years 3.33%
5 Transmission Sub-Station & Switchgear 30 years 3.33%
6. Vehicles, Car, Jeep and Van 15 years 6.67%
7. Vehicles- Others 5 years 20%
8. Furniture and Fixtures 5 years 20%
9. Office Equipment 06.606 years 15%

10. Miscellaneous Assets 2 years 50%

Only those assets having value of more than NPR 5,000 per item are capitalized.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease or estimated useful life, whichever is lower,
on straight line basis.

Restriction on PPE

The company has to transfer the entire generation unit to Government of Nepal under BOOT arrangement
after expiry of period of generation license i.e. Mangsir 16, 2102 or 30 years from Commercial Operation
Date (COD) whichever is earlier. Thus, the useful life of PPE has been modified accordingly.

6.2.  Capital Work in Progress (CWIP):

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized and shown as assets under capital work in progress
account (CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a
site to its former condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling,
removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon
completion and a corresponding liability is recognized. Revenue generated from generation during the trial
period is capitalized. Assets that are directly related to the project, the project being in progress, has been
capitalized in the Capital Work in Progress.

6.3.  Other Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.

6.4. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and impairment loss is recognized whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

6.5. Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Any investment income on the temporary investment
of borrowed funds has been deducted from borrowing costs.

6.6.  Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and demand deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

6.7. Inventories:

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

6.8. Revenue Recognition:
6.8.1. Sale of Electricity:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and
that the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue is recognized
when substantial risks and rewards of ownership is transferred to the buyer under the terms of contract.

6.8.2. Interest Income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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6.9. Foreign Currency Transactions:

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in
which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Nepalese Rupee (NPR).

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The effect from fluctuation of exchange rate raised while initially recognizing the transaction as per contract
on the base rate mentioned in the contract and settling the transactions at the settlement date has been
recognized in Capital Work in Progress for Main Civil Construction works. Foreign exchange gain/loss
occurring from other activity has been charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall be translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

6.10. Employment Benefits:

The Company has schemes of employment benefits namely provident fund, employee gratuity, other
retirement benefit and accumulate leave payable as per employee service manual.

The liabilities regarding retirement of the employee’s remains with the Nepal Electricity Authority, who have
been seconded to this company by NEA, as most of the employees are permanent employees of Nepal
Electricity Authority and deputed for the execution of the project. However, the company has paid monthly
salaries to the employees deputed under the project and annual leave encashment. In addition to this,
company has paid amount equivalent to basic salary of the employees to Nepal Electricity Authority for
deputation of employees.

The company itself has a policy to provide gratuity amount regarding retirement benefits plan after at least 3
years’ service period. There are no any permanent employees who has more than 3 years’ service period. So,
the provision is not required to be made for such retirement benefits as per prevailing policy of company.
However, recognition of gratuity liability has been made as per Labour Act 2074 and rules thereon.

The company has a policy to exercise employees' stock option, according to which, employees exercised the
option during the fiscal year 2071/072.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN - PROVIDENT FUND

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds
and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. Contributions to defined
contribution schemes (Provident fund) are charged to the profit or loss statement in the year to which they
relate as the company has no further defined obligations beyond monthly contributions. Contributions to
defined contribution schemes are deposited with Employees Provident Fund (Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh).

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - GRATUITY

The Company provides for defined benefits in the form of gratuity which is non funded. The liability or asset
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the value of present liability of
gratuity as per prevailing Acts and Regulations.

The Company recognises incremental amount of provisions of gratuity in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Company’s obligation is classified as current liabilities.
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Actuarial valuation as per NAS 19, “Employee Benefits” have not been carried out as major portion of
employees working in the company are NEA employees and liability of post-retitement benefits lies with
NEA.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee and contractual employees, benefits are measured at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liability of leave salary payable of NEA employees is recognized when an employee has more than 60 days of
accumulated home leave.

6.11. Income Tax:

The commercial operation of the company has not been started and hence no tax liability arises to the
company. Further company is entitled to Tax holiday of 10 years from commencement of commercial
operation.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities have not been recognized as no taxable temporary differences are raised due
to tax holiday.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for carry forward of tax losses as management estimates that it
is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which unused tax losses can be utilised due
to tax holiday.

6.12. Earnings per Share (EPS)

L. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the yeat by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to
existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

II.  Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to
equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a
later date. Diluted EPS has not been calculated as no potential equity exists as on the reporting periods.

¢6.13. Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.
6.14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
6.14.1.Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee
contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

6.14.2 Effective Interest Method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income/expense atising on financial instruments after applying an effective interest rate is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. Where interest component is present in the financial instruments, the implicit
interest rate approximates the effective interest rate.

6.14.3.Financial Assets:
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
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or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried
at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair
value through the statement of profit or loss.

The company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model. For financial
assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve
months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under
NFRS 9. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differences between the carrying amounts measured
at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

6.15. Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:
Classification as Debt or Equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee.
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6.16.

6.17.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Off-setting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. A lease is classified at the
inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

The Company as a Lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
asset or, at the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless either:

a. Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

b. The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because
of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

The Company as a Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Segment Reporting:

The company is engaged in only one business activity of “Generation and Sale of Electricity”. Thus, separate
segment information is not provided as per NFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
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7. Notes to Accounts:

7.1.  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Details of property, plant & equipment are presented as follows:
. Transmissi Other
Particul BESRIE | | gy E Ofﬁ;: Furmctiu i on Sy %ﬂ:ﬁhsip (e Vehicle WA, Total
articuiars Land utding quipmen an Line33Kv & | Substation . Construc- Assets
t fixtures equipment |
below tion Work
Cost
Balance at 1 Shrawan 2072 | 66,886,212 | 46,537,817 | 17,586,153 | 6,564,086 | 27,667,463 | 32,300,203 526,128 | 4,323,013 | 24,126,718 | 3,735,375 | 230,253,167
Addition - | 785,035 | 525,281 R R 6,554 R 229 475 455282 2,001,626
Balance at 31 Ashad 2073 | 66,886,212 | 46,537,817 | 18,371,188 | 7,089,366 | 27,667,463 | 32,300,203 | 532,682 | 4,323,013 | 24,356,193 | 4,190,656 | 232,254,793
Addition - 1534511 | 254,652 R R R R R 220,011 2,000,173
Transferred to CWIP (66,886,212) | (46,537,817) R [ (27,667,463) [ (32,300,203) | (532,682) | (4,323,013) | (14,217,201) “(192,464,591)
Balance at 31 Ashad 2074 - - 1719,905,699 | 7,344,018 R R R - 10,138,992 | 4,410,667 | 41,799,376
Addition R 1574585 | 171,760 R R R R R 616,456 2,362,801
2 Ashad 2

e Ashad 2075 - - | 21,480,284 | 7,515,778 - - - -| 10,138,992 | 5,027,123 | 44,162,177
Depreciation
Bal 1Sh 2072

e O van 207 .| 4,407,810 | 11,712,658 | 5,153,385 | 2,905,084 | 3,323,980 58,398 | 671,225 | 23,982,841 | 3,689,571 | 55,904,953
Charged for the year R 930,756 | 1,683,829 | 873,589 830,024 969,006 105,881 86,460 | (4,089,215) 125,507 1,515,837
Disposal - - - - - - - - 14,217,197 14,217,197
Balance at 31 Ashad 2073 - 5,338,567 | 13,396,487 | 6,026,974 | 3,735,108 | 4,292,986 164,279 | 757,686 | 5,676,429 | 3,815,078 | 43,203,594
Charged for the year R ~ 1,580,658 | 500,957 R R - R 627,255 300,291 3,009,162
Disposal | (5,338,567) R | (3,735,108) | (4,292,986) | (164,279) | (757,686) R | (14,288,625)
Balance at 31 Ashad 2074 - - [ 14,977,145 | 6,527,932 - - - - 6,303,684 | 4,115,370 | 31,924,130
Charged for the year R 1 1,627956 | 262,567 B B R R 594,577 386,096 2,871,195
Bal 2 Ashad 2

B\ shad 2075 - - | 16,605,101 | 6,790,498 - - - -| 6898261 | 4,501,465 | 34,795,326
Net Book Value As at
31 Ashad 2073 66,886,212 | 41,199,250 | 4,974,701 | 1,062,392 | 23,932,356 | 28,007,217 | 368,403 | 3,565,328 | 18,679,764 375,578 | 189,051,200
01 Shrawan 2073 - - 4,974,701 | 1,062,392 - - - S| 4,462,563 375,578 | 10,875,234
31 Ashad 2074 - - 4,928,554 | 816,086 - - - - 3,835,308 295298 | 9,875,246
32 Ashad 2075 - - 4,875,183 | 725,280 - - - - 3,240,731 525,658 9,366,851

Substantial Property Plant and Equipment have been transferred to Capital Work in Progress (CWIP). Book value of Assets as on reporting date
has been considered as fair value. Land, Buildings, civil constructions, transmission line & substation, workshop plant & equipment, which were
earlier recognized as property plant & equipment have been transferred to the Capital Work in Progress/Project in Progtess, being those assets
directly related to the project. Useful lives of Vehicles- Car, Jeep and Vans has been re-estimated as 15 years, which were earlier estimated as 5
years. Life of other vehicles have not been changed. The effect of such change in estimate has been made retrospectively and adjusted by
deducting the accumulated depreciation of vehicles as on the transition date.
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7.2.  Capital Work in Progress:

Hydropower plant is still in the process of construction and all the expenditure which are directly attributable to acquisition, construction or

production of the assets are shown as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) details as given hereunder:

Ovening a | Addition | Transfer | o . | Addition | Transfer | ... Addition T(;afiflfe‘ Total as at
Particulars 0104507 | during FY | from PPE | “BUUE S quring FY | during FY | 70000 | during FY | [OUSE | P SRS

at oLo% 2072-73 to CWIP s 2073-74 2073-74 e 2074-75 . et
Land 40,546,760 117,938 | 66,886,212 107,550,010 227,572 | 107,778,482 127,966 | 107,906,448
Residential Building . 9,001,120 | 46,537,817 55,538,936 2,539,105 - 58,078,041 4,746,573 - 62,824,614
Otz Gl 4323013 4323013 - - 4323013 4906913 - 9,229,926
Construction
Other Structures 2,571,730 . . 2,571,730 . - 2,571,730 4431338 | 4,431,338 2,571,730
Hydraulic Works 18,006,279,290 | 3,735,980,067 - | 21,742,259,357 | 2,884,046,167 - | 24,626,305,524 | 4,261,309,512 - | 28,887,615,036
s Line & 599229270 | 736,256,626 S| 1335485895 | 601,602,529 S| 1,937,088424 | 135,867,131 - 2,072,955,555
S/S above 33 KV
Transmission Line &
o . | 59,967,666 59,967,666 . . 59,967,666 - - 59,967,666
o piant and : § 532,682 532,682 - - 532,682 - - 532,682
Equipment
Vehicles . -| 14,217,201 14,217,201 : . 14,217,201 - - 14,217,201
Employee Expenses 454,898,508 | 75,890,476 . 530,788,084 | 113,817,339 S| 644,606,323 | 128,434,168 S| 773,040,492
Stores and Services 698,726 - - 698,726 - - 698,726 - - 698,726
Repairs & Maintenance 1,173,579 - - 1,173,579 - - 1,173,579 - - 1,173,579
Fuel (Vehicle) 31,011,600 6,411,885 . 37,423,484 7,821,463 . 45244,948 7,507,120 - 52,752,067
Mobil (Vehicle) 2,820,004 793,335 . 3,613,339 1,080,614 . 4,693,954 1,145,001 - 5,838,055
™ & 35,426,147 8,661,588 - 44,087,734 | 14,269,599 - 58,357,333 11,107,965 - 69,465,298
Maintenance
Administrative Expense 28,076,148 . : 28,076,148 : . 28,076,148 . - 28,076,148
Finance Cost 4258519215 | 2,761,910,786 S| 7,020430,001 | 3,374,775,998 - 110,395,205,999 | 4,679,854,641 - | 15,075,060,640
Other Expenses 12,913,658 . . 12,913,658 : . 12,913,658 : - 12,913,658
Feasibility Expense 170,571,906 . . 170,571,906 . -1 170,571,906 . -1 170,571,906
Consultancy 2,372,332,519 | 366,407,463 S| 2,738,739,982 | 546,208,792 S| 3284948774 | 689,898,308 -] 3,974,847,081
o Study 9.241,791 - - 9.241.791 - : 9,241,791 : : 9,241,791
Expenditure
e entral 3,630,713 - - 3,630,713 - - 3,630,713 B, - 3,630,713

Office

N\



Opening as Addition | Transfer Opening as at Addition | Transfer | oo Addition T;sl‘;;fge‘ Total as at
marcchlacs at 01.04.2072 | during FY | from PPE | 4, ) 5505+ | during FY | during FY | = 5 5 55 | duting BY | po000 | 35032075
2072-73 to CWIP 2073-74 2073-74 2074-75 o

s 448,400,082 | 32,577,844 | 32,909,201 448,068,725 | 21,935,382 |(12,447,419) | 457,556,688 6,063,087 S| 463,619,774
Development
i‘;;li IS)CSVCIOPmC“t 75,539,817 | 10,375,070 : 85014,887 | 54,427,212 S| 140,342,099 70,880,231 S| 211222331
ponlEEChange 1,220,204,054 | 150,985 462 S| 1,371,189,515 | 382,714,407 2| 1,753,903,923 | 372,479,319 S| 2126383242
(Gain)/Loss
Small Tools 56,224 56,596 . 112,820 132,506 - 245326 145,391 - 390,718
Transportation 4,266,242 135,600 - 4,401,842 . - 4,401,842 1,698,392 - 6,100,234
Lttt 335,343 464,379 . 799,722 . . 799,722 25,145 : 824,867
Maintenance-Plant
Liepriteani 1,974,745 1,616,426 : 3,591,171 3,015,736 . 6,606,908 3,805,149 . 10,412,057
Maintenance-Civil
e " enance- 24,747 2,109,215 - 2,133,962 127,786 - 2,261,749 90,061 . 2,351,810
Transmission Line
Land and Property Tax 19,111,864 5,004,838 . 24,116,703 5,006,820 . 29,123,522 5,026,579 . 34,150,102
Finance Charges 8,956,567 3,362,237 12,318,804 7,238,678 . 19,557,482 10,041,455 . 29,598,937
Access Road upgrading | 4 531 519539 | 32009201 S| 1264428740 | 12,447,419 -1 1,276,876,159 . -1 1,276,876,159
Expenses

Total 29,040,330,787 | 7,941,028,151 | 225,373,791 | 37,140,914,328 | 8,033,435,125 |(12,447,419) | 45,161,902,034 |10,399,591,446 | 4,431,338 | 55,557,062,142

These expenditures which are now shown as Capital Work in Progress in Statement of Financial Position are subject to capitalization upon
commencement of generation of electricity or the date on which the plant is ready for put to use, whichever is earlier. Some expenses which are
of administrative nature are also included in CWIP as these are considered directly attributable to the project. Land, Buildings, civil
constructions, transmission line & substation, workshop plant & equipment, which were earlier recognized as property plant & equipment have
been transferred to the Capital Work in Progress/Project in Progress, being those assets directly related to the project. Accumulated
depreciation of such assets have been adjusted through retained earnings.

Expenses relating to Vehicle fuel, Mobil and Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance, which have been incurred for project as well as general
administrative purpose of the company, have been apportioned in the ratio of 80:20 between the project and general administration. The
management considers the basis of apportion appropriate and the accounting has been done accordingly.
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7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities:

The company is in construction phase and after completion it will get a tax holiday for 10 years. Therefore,
the accounting of deferred tax assets or liabilities has not been started yet.

Inventories:

Details of inventories is as follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075| Ashad 31, 2074| Shrawan 1, 2073
General Stocks 222723 3,305 -
Stock of Electric Goods 17,413,383 9,026,038 34,484,012
Other engineering inventories and spare parts 559,113 - -
Total 18,195,219 9,029,344 34,484,012
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Details of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075| Ashad 31, 2074| Shrawan 1, 2073

Current Deposit Account
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. Kathmandu 1,403,770 67,059,055 35,536,370
Sunrise Bank Ltd. 3,001,588 - -
NABIL Bank I.td, Kathmandu 105,149,922 1,639,635 11,528,080
NABIL Bank I.td, Charikot 8,617,249 4,449,726 228,435
Bank of Kathmandu 677,215 743,497 919,881
Sub-total(A) 118,849,745 73,891,912 48,212,767

Call Deposit Account

Prabhu Bank Limited, Anamnagar, Kathmandu 605,917 598,232 590,665
Sunrise Bank Ltd. 5,000 - -
NABIL Bank Itd., Kathmandu 109,283,510 615,550,062 915,599,515
Sub-total(B) 109,894,427 616,148,294 916,190,180
Total(A+B) 228,744,171 690,040,207 964,402,947

7.6. Other Current Assets:

Details of current assets other than inventories and cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 | Ashad 31, 2074| Shrawan 1, 2073

Advances to Contractor 1,244,728,745 1,206,326,668 1,254,409,390
L/C Bank Margin 219,807,545 230,152,458 237,688,703
Loan to NEA staff 9,526,125 5,170,525 4,460,380
Advance to Staff-Salary 22,000 - -
Advance to staff-others - 290,828 562
Advance payments 720,846 284,186 1,208,037
Deposits 232,100 6,202,100 146,100
Advance Tax 32,429,410 31,280,991 28,032,063
Other Advances 17,252,267 16,007,417 16,323,264
Total 1,524,719,038 1,495,715,172 1,542,268,498
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7.7.

Equity Share Capital:

The par value of each equity share of company is NPR. 100 and details of share capital is as follows:

Particulars

Ashad 32, 2075

Ashad 31, 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073

Ordinary shares

Convertible preference shares (equity
component only)

7,942,500,000

7,942,500,000

7,942,500,000

Irredeemable preference shares (equity
component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only)

Total

7,942,500,000

7,942,500,000

7,942,500,000

Ordinary shares

Particulars

Ashad 32, 2075

Ashad 31, 2074

Shrawan 1, 2073

Authorized Capital

110,000,000 Shares of NPR 100 each

11,000,000,000

11,000,000,000

11,000,000,000

Issued and subscribed

105,900,000 Shatres of NPR 100 each 10,590,000,000 10,590,000,000 10,590,000,000
Paid up capital
79,425,000 share of NPR 100 each fully paid 7,942,500,000 7,942,500,000 7,942,500,000
Otrdinary share amount 7,942,500,000 7,942,500,000 7,942,500,000
The detail of paid up capital is as given below:
Shareholders Amount (NPR)
Group 'A' Promoter Share
Nepal Electricity Authority (43,419,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 4,341,900,000
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited (6,354,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 635,400,000
Citizen Investment Trust (2,118,000 shares (@ NPR 100 each) 211,800,000
Rastriya Beema Sansthan (2,118,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 211,800,000
Sub Total 5,400,900,000
Group 'B' Ordinary Share
Employee of Vatious organizations (25,416,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 2,541,600,000
Sub Total 2,541,600,000
Grand Total (79,425,000 shares @ NPR 100 each) 7,942,500,000
The detail of Shareholdings pattern of the company is as follows:
Group Group Name Holding %
Group A — Promoter 1 Nepal Electricity Authority 41%
2 Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 6%
3 Citizen Investment Trust 2%
4 Rastriya Beema Sansthan 2%
Group B — Other 1 Contributors of Employees Provident Fund 17.28%
2 Staff of Company and NEA 3.84%
3 Staff of Lender Institutions 2.88%
4 Local resident of Dolkha 10%
5 General Public 15%
Total 100%

The aforesaid shareholding shall be achieved after all public issue of shares is completed.
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7.8.

7.9.

Retained Earnings

Details of retained earnings of the company is as follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

Opening Balance (438,522,703) (411,159,502) (348,925,752)
Prior Period Adjustment (655,200) (226,645) -
Share issue expenses (12,462,829) - (569,485)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (102,969,169) (27,136,5506) (61,664,265)
Total (554,609,901) (438,522,703) (411,159,502)

The details of prior period adjustment during the fiscal year 2074-75 is as follows:

S.No Particulars Amount (NPR)
1 Helicopter Charter Charge of F/Y 2073/74 185,400
2 Legal Fee 469,800
Total 655,200

Long Term Loans:

A Long-Term loan agreement for NPR 31,080 Million has been entered between the company and
Employees Provident Fund, Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited, Citizen Investment Trust, Rastriya
Beema Sansthan and Government of Nepal in association with Nepal Electricity Authority at various dates.
According to which NPR 30,500 Million has been obtained and utilized for the development of project till
the end of F/Y 2074/075.

Details of long-term loans of company is follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073

From Promoters/ Other Institutions:
Karmachari Sanchay Kosh (EPF) 10,000,000,000 8,691,708,973 7,243.973,312
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. (NTC) 6,000,000,000 5,215,025,708 4,346,384,311
Rastriya Beema Sansthan 2,000,000,000 1,738,341,491 1,448,794,358
Nagarik Lagani Kosh (CIT) 2,000,000,000 1,738,341,922 1,448,794,790
Sub-Total (Secured Loan) 20,000,000,000 17,383,418,093 14,487,946,771
GoN through Nepal Electricity Authority 10,500,000,000 10,000,000,000 9,000,000,000
Sub-Total (Unsecured Loan) 10,500,000,000 10,000,000,000 9,000,000,000
Total 30,500,000,000 27,383,418,093 23,487,946,771

Long term loans obtained from Employees Provident fund, Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited, Citizen
Investment Trust and Rastriya Beema Sansthan are all secured loans.

Middle Marshyangdi Powerhouse having capacity of 70 MW owned by Nepal Electricity Authority, has been
mortgaged in the name of Employees Provident Fund as a guarantee for loan taken thereon.

The land, property, plant and equipment owned by the company itself at present and to be owned in future
has been mortgaged in the name of Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited, Citizen Investment Trust and
Rastriya Beema Sansthan as security against the loan from these institutions.
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7.10. Provisions:

Provisions for gratuity as per Labour Act and provisions for leave encashment as per prevailing regulations of
company has been booked. For NEA employees' provision has been made for accumulated leave in excess of
60 days. Details of provisions is given hereunder:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074 | Shrawan 1, 2073

Provision for Gratuity 1,909,268 - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 9,056,267 7,892,187 5,668,076
Total 10,965,535 7,892,187 5,668,076

7.11. Interest on Long Term Loan:

Interest during construction period (IDC) has been classified as non-current liabilities, details as follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074 | Shrawan 1, 2073
Karmachari Sanchay Kosh (EPF) 5,679,360,518 3,986,156,426 2,825,139,053
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. (NTC) 2,738,327,440 1,929,126,856 1,367,665,713
Rastriya Beema Sansthan 870,002,351 605,017,596 424,370,708
Nagarik Lagani Kosh (CIT) 1,102,430,583 759,635,198 539,616,719
GoN through Nepal Electricity Authority 4,035,726,456 2,724 808,117 1,622,300,243
Total 14,425,847,349 10,004,744,194 6,779,092,436
7.12. Short Term Loans:
Details of short-term loans is as follows:
Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 | Ashad 31, 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
Karmachari Sanchay Kosh (EPF) 500,000,000 - -
Nagarik Lagani Kosh (CIT) 500,000,000 - -
Nabil Bank Ltd 900,000,000 - -
Total 1,900,000,000 - -
7.13. Other Current Liabilities:
Details of other current liabilities is as follows:
Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 | Ashad 31, 2074 Shrawan 1, 2073
Expense Payables 1,502,254,719 915,351,170 542,498,386
Retention Payables 1,432,896,861 1,303,582,184 1,187,474,486
Other Deposit 2,923 568 67,400,581 8,900,581
Earnest Money Deposit 351,000 26,000 21,000
Staff Payables 4,666,629 1,128,602 124,933
NEA staff loan 6,156,106 1,800,506 1,090,361
Tax Deduction at Source 138,791,771 171,320,799 144,319,069
Other Miscellaneous Liabilities 5,954,446 4,566,169 2,418,812
Short Term Loan Interest 18,145,994 - -
Stale cheques 480,597 224,220 580,610
Audit fee payable 762,750 1,130,000 1,469,000
Total 3,113,384,439 2,466,530,231 1,888,897,239

3taR amrepiRi grsaideRr foifics




7.14.

7.15.

7.16.

The company has deducted NPR. 1,432.89 (P.Y. 1,303.58) Million as retention money as per the provision of
contract from various parties. Company has obligation to refund those amounts upon the completion of

defect liability period.
Revenue:

Revenue from sale of electricity is nil as the commercial operation of company has not started as on the end
of reporting period.

Generation Expenses:
As the commercial operation of company has not started yet there is no generation expenses of the company.
Other Income:

Other income includes income from activities other than primary business of generation of electricity. Details
presented as follows:

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
Income from sale of tender forms 271,000 142,000
Examination Fee - 15,000
Miscellaneous Income 17813 411,371
Income from Other Services 15,144 -
Total 303,957 568,371

7.17. Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss):

Difference in rate of foreign currency liabilities at the date of recognition and at the date of payment is shown

under this head.

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
Foreign Currency Exchange Gain/ (Loss) (46,294,385) 20,160,728
Total (46,294,385) 20,160,728

7.18. Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

The company has practice of charging those administrative expenses which are not directly attributable to
construction of project in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Details as given hereunder:

As the company is in construction phase and no profits have been earned by the company, provision for
bonus has not been provided.

Vehicle fuel, Mobil and Repair & Maintenance have been apportioned in the ratio of 80:20 between the
project and general administration on the basis of estimated time devoted by vehicle for Project related work

and administrative work.

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
Salaries and other employee cost 13,579,151 8,444,852
Contribution to Provident Fund 234,662 77,075
Leave encashment 1,373,150 2,322,278
Gratuity Expenses 1,909,268 -
Contribution to retirement fund 308,307 300,482
Water and Electricity 309,257 315,152
Medical Expenses Reimbursement 475,510 566,356
Staff Welfare 385,663 224225

e anftleh yfddigst 311.cf. oLy /oY




7.19.

7.20.

Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
NEA staff overhead expenses 2,104,880 770,751
Advertisement and business promotion 303,000 163,056
AGM and Board Expenses 776,000 616,000
Other Meeting Allowances 2,455,100 -
Notice Publishing expenses 1,246,405 976,996
General Meeting Expenses 407,188 1,126,778
Ceremonial expenses 326,515 277,550
Audit Fee 565,000 565,000
Tax Audit Fee 169,500 169,500
Internal Audit Fee 84,750 395,500
Audit Expenses 201,343 185,023
License fees 990,005 931,675
Insurance 283,196 245241
Organizational Development Expenses 307,186 -
Gift and Donation 358,000 609,000
Fuel and Mobil (Vehicle) 2,163,030 2,225,519
Hospitality and Refreshment 1,171,407 1,016,449
Other Profession Charges/RTS Exp. 990,000 1,477,900
Legal and professional Expenses 1,905,587 1,845,169
Telephone 1,508,538 1,921,816
Printing and Stationery 1,752,203 1,600,375
Books and periodicals 398,150 332,250
Rent 3,695,550 3,514,616
Repair and Maintenance 3,976,252 4,853,345
Tiffin expenses 309,569 208,406
Training and Development 287,500 816,758
Travelling expenses 1,815,740 1,386,581
Transportation - 570,037
Postage & Telegram 28,355 21,835
Recruitment Expenses 1,226,798 101,495
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,523,782 3,532,191
Total 53,905,498 44,707,235

Finance Income:

Interest income from reinvestment of borrowed funds is deducted from interest capitalized in CWIP. There

is no other finance income of company.

Finance Costs:

Financial charges such as loan processing fees and bank charges is shown under this head. Details as given

hereunder:
Particulars Ashad 32, 2075 Ashad 31, 2074
Bank Charges 202,048 149,258
Total 202,048 149,258
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7.21. Contingent Liabilities

1.

1.

A case lodged by P.R. Prakash J.V. in High Court, claiming for loss of its equipment after termination of road
construction contract was decided in favor of Company. P.R. Prakash JV has submitted an appeal to Supreme
Court against the decision of High Court which is now pending with Supreme Court for decision. However,
the possibility of Supreme court decision against the company is remote hence no contingent liability is
expected.

Company has also lodged a writ petition to Supreme Court against PR Prakash JV against the decision made
by Arbitration Tribunal and Appellate Court and also against the company. As the Tribunal and Court had
decided entitlement of NPR 5,92, 98,867.85 by the contractor PR Prakash JV, this amount has been already
paid through the district court along with interest and fee of the court (the court had taken NPR
6,45,53,406.41 from company's Bank A/C No. 9706017500002 in fiscal year 2070/071). No further liability is
expected even if case is not decided in favour of the company.

First time adoption of NFRSs

These financial statements, for the year ended Asadh 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018), are the first the company has
prepared in accordance with NFRS. For periods up to and including the year ended Asadh 31, 2074 (July 15,
2017), the company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards “NAS”
(Local GAAP). Accordingly, the company has prepared financial statements that comply with NFRS
applicable as at Asadh 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) together with the comparative period data for the year ended
Asadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017).

The adoption of NFRS has been carried out in accordance with NFRS 1, First-time Adoption of NFRS.
NFRS 1 requires that all NFRS and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first NFRS financial
statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the
Company has prepared financial statements which comply with NFRS for the year ended Ashad 32, 2075,
together with the comparative information as at and for the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 and the opening
NFRS Balance Sheet as at Shrawan 01, 2073, the date of transition to NFRS.

In preparing these NFRS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in
accordance with NFRS 1, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the
assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under NFRS and Previous GAAP have
been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity). This note
explains the adjustments made by the Company in restating its Previous GAAP financial statements,
including the Statement of Financial Position as at Shrawan 01, 2073 and the financial statements as at and
for the year ended Ashad 31, 2074.

Exemptions from retrospective application

NFRS 1 allows certain exemptions to the first-time adoptor from retrospective application of certain
requirements under NFRS. The Company has elected to apply the following optional exemptions from
retrospective application:

i. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has elected to measure its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including
under progress at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to
NFRS. However, life of asset namely 'Vehicle-Cat, Jeep and Van' have been re-estimated, the effect of
the same has been taken retrospectively, which is described in the notes to reconciliation of equity.

Exceptions to retrospective application

The Company has applied the following exceptions to the retrospective application of NFRS as mandatorily
required under NFRS 1:
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i. Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company
has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under NFRS, as there is no objective
evidence that those estimates wete in etror, except the change in the life of "Vehicles- Car, Jeep and
Vans' as stated in the notes to accounts. However, estimates that wete required under NFRS but not
required under Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting
conditions existing as at that date.

ii.  Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income is made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed on the date of
transition to NFRS.

iii. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Company has applied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
C.  Transition to NFRS — Reconciliations

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the
transition from Previous GAAP to NFRS in accordance with NFRS 1:

i Reconciliation of Equity as at Shrawan 01, 2073 and Ashad 31, 2074.

. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year ended
Ashadh 31, 2074.

iii.  Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows.

iv.  Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position.

Previous GAAP information has been reclassified/regrouped in accordance with NFRS, wherever necessaty,
based on the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 and Ashad 31,
2073.

8.1.  Reconciliation of equity as at Shrawan 01, 2073 and Ashad 31, 2074:

As at 31.03.2
. Explanatory As at 01.04.2073 (Ensd 03 la(:t,’ pf(:)Zi‘(‘)d
Particulars Note Tf—?lflstiiigi) presented under
previous GAAP)
Total equity under Previous GAAP (1,811,362,565) (1,993,943,917)
Adjustments under NIFRSs:
Reversal of foreign exchange gain/loss on 8.1.1
non-monetary items (advances to contractors) (248,398,4306) (236,529,847)
Change in depreciation of Assets 8.1.2 (487,500) 2,025,004
Leave Expenses 8.1.3 (5,668,076) (7,892,187)
Interest income deducted from CWIP 8.1.4 (189,508,852) (211,405,645)
Directly Attributable cost transferred to CWIP 8.1.5
from Administrative Expenses 1,811,005,887 1,975,963,848
Assets transferred to CWIP 8.1.6 33,260,040 33,260,040
Total Adjustment to equity 1,400,203,063 1,555,421,214
Total Equity under NFRSs (411,159,502) (438,522,703)

The details regarding adjustments made as per NFRS shown in above reconciliation of equity are as follows:
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8.1.1.

Reversal of Foreign exchange gain/loss on non-monetary items:

As per NAS 21 para 23, non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall
be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. However, previously non-monetary items
were revalued using the closing rates and now the effect of such revaluation is reversed.

. Changes in depreciation of Assets:

As per NAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment para 50, the depreciable amount of an asset shall be allocated
on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Before NFRS implementation, life of assets namely -Vehicles- Car, Jeep and Vans were estimated as 5 years,
however the same has been re-estimated as 15 years. The effect of such changes has been made
retrospectively. Also, eatlier depreciation was charged at 50% of applicable rate of depreciation in the year of
capitalization, however now depreciation has been charged from the date the assets have been put to use as
per NAS 16.

. Leave Expenses:

Leave expenses was not recognized on accrual basis while preparing financial statements as per earlier GAAP
which are now recognized. Leave payable to employees of the company has been recognized for the full
amount of accumulated leave as on the financial year end date. However, in case of NEA employees leave
expenses has been recognized in case of home leave accumulated for the period in excess of 60 days up to
150 days.

. Interest income:

Interest income earned from re-investment of borrowed fund (interest earned on call account) has been
deducted from Capital Work in Progress from the earlier capitalized Finance Cost. In the financial statements
prepared as per earlier such interest income was booked as interest income in Statement of Income.

. Directly attributable cost charged to CWIP:

Directly attributable cost related with the project which was earlier charged to Profit or Loss and shown
under administrative expenses has now been transferred to CWIP. However, Costs relating to Fuel, Mobil
and Vehicles repair & maintenance have been apportioned in the ratio of 80:20 between the project and
general administrations respectively.

. Assets transferred to CWIP:

Assets namely Buildings, Other civil constructions, Transmission lines 33 Kv & below and 33/11KV
substation, Workshop Plant & Equipment and certain vehicles, which were treated as Property, Plant &
Equipment have been transferred to Capital Work in Progress/ Project in Progress, being
acquisition/construction of such assets directly related to the project. Accumulated depreciation of such
assets has been adjusted through equity as on the transition date. Also, the effect of change in estimate of
economic life of company's vehicles (not related to the project) has been adjusted.
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8.2. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year ended 31

Ashad, 2074:
For the year ended
. Explanat .03. latest
Paticulars pNote o pz:i(())gl i?‘Z:e(liltl:d u:l:(sler
previous GAAP)
Profit/(Loss) for the year as per previous GAAP (182,354,707)
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Reversal of foreign exchange gain/loss on non-monetary 8.2.1 11,868,590
items (advances to contractors)
Changes in depreciation of building and Other Civil 8.2.2 2,512,504
Construction Work
Leave Expenses 8.2.3 (2,224,111)
Interest Income 8.2.4 (21,896,793)
Directly Attributable cost transferred to CWIP from 8.25 164,957,961
Administrative Expenses
Total Adjustment to profit or loss 155,218,151
Profit or loss under NFRSs (27,136,556)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs (27,136,556)

The details regarding changes made in Statement of Income prepared as per earlier GAAP and Statement of
Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income is given as follows:

8.2.1. Reversal of foreign exchange gain/loss on non-monetary items

Changes is due to restatement of non-monetary items at the rate of transaction which was earlier valued at
the closing rate at the end of fiscal year.

8.2.2. Changes in depreciation

Changes is due to modification of estimated useful life of assets from earlier estimated useful life and
charging of depreciation on systematic basis over useful life. Also, the depreciation of certain assets which
have now been transferred to CWIP, earlier recognized as Property, Plant & Equipment, have been adjusted.

8.2.3. Leave provision:
Changes is due to recognition of accumulated leave balance of employees on accrual basis.
8.2.4. Interest Income;

Interest income earned on call accounts with banks was earlier shown in Statement of Income eatlier which is
now deducted from Capital Work in Progress.

8.2.5. Directly attributable cost transferred to CWIP:

Directly attributable cost related with the project which was earlier charged to Profit or Loss and shown
under administrative expenses has now been transferred to CWIP. Also, refer explanatory note no. 8.5 to
Reconciliation for Equity relating to Vehicle Fuel, Mobil, and Repair & Maintenance expenses.
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end of the period

.
8.3. Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows:
For the year ended 31.03.2074 (the latest period
presented under previous GAAP)
Particulars Explanatory Effect of
Note Previous Transition to Amount as
GAAP NFRSs per NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating 8.3.1 522,006488 | 105,504,570 | 627,511,058
actvities
Net cash flows from investing 832 (7,917,492,308) | (105,504,570) | (8,022,996,879)
activities
Net cash flows from financing 7,121,123,080 S| 7,121,123,080
actvities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash (274,362,740) ©0) | (274,362,740)
and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at the 964,402,947 S| 964,402,947
beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalent at the 690,040,207 ) 690,040,207

Following adjustments have been made in the Statement of Cash Flows.

8.3.1. Cash flow from operating activities:

The changes ate due to difference in recognition income/expenses as per NFRS and as per eatlier provision.

8.3.2. Cash flow from investing activities:

The difference is due to change is value of capital work in progress due to reversal of foreign exchange
gain/loss on non-monetaty items (advance to contractors) and recognition of interest received as cash flow

from investing activities.
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8.4 Reconciliation of statement of Financial Position:

As at 01.04.2073 (Date of Transition)

As at 31.03.2074 (End of last period presented

under previous GAAP)
Expla- Opening Cumulati
Particulars natory . Effect of NFRSs . amwative
Note Previous Transition t tatement of Previous Effect of Amount as per
GAAP e GAAP Transition to NFRSs
NFRSs Financial
2e NFRSs
Position

Assets

Property, plant and equipment | 8.4.1 170,567,284 (159,692,050) 10,875,234 219,487,287 (209,612,041) 9,875,246
Capital work-in-progress 8.42 35,481,465,033 1,659,449,295| 37,140,914,328| 43,344,515,674 1,817,386,360| 45,161,902,034
Inventories 34,484,012 - 34,484,012 9,029,344 - 9,029,344
Cash and cash equivalents 964,402,947 - 964,402,947 690,040,207 - 690,040,207
Other current assets 8.4.3 1,636,154,604 (93,886,100) 1,542,268,498 1,540,176,090 (44,460,918) 1,495,715,172
Total Assets 38,287,073,881 1,405,871,139 | 39,692,945,020| 45,803,248,601 1,563,313,401| 47,366,562,002
Equity and Liabilities

Share capital 7,942,500,000 - 7,942,500,000 7,942,500,000 - 7,942,500,000
Retained FEarnings 8.4.4 (1,811,362,565) 1,400,203,063 (411,159,502) | (1,993,943,917) 1,555,421,214 (438,522,703)
Long Term Loans 23,487,946,771 - 23,487,946,771| 27,383,418,093 - 27,383,418,093
Provisions 8.4.5 - 5,668,076 5,668,076 - 7,892,187 7,892,187
Interest on Long term loan 6,779,092,436 - 0,779,092,436| 10,004,744,194 - 10,004,744,194
Other current liabilities 1,888,897,239 - 1,888,897,239 2,466,530,231 - 2,466,530,231
Total Equity and Liabilities 38,287,073,881 1,405,871,139| 39,692,945,020| 45,803,248,601 1,563,313,401| 47,366,562,002

The changes in Statement of Financial Position prepared as per NFRS and as per eatlier provisions is as follows:




8.4.1. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Changes is due to difference in depreciation due to changes in useful life of assets and charging of
depreciation on systematic basis over useful life. Assets namely Buildings, Other civil constructions,
Transmission lines 33 Kv & below and 33/11KV substation, Workshop Plant & Equipment and certain
vehicles, which were treated as Property, Plant & Equipment have been transferred to Capital Work in
Progress/ Project in Progtess, being acquisition/construction of such assets directly related to the project.
Cost of such assets have been transferred to CWIP. Also, refer point 8.2 of the notes to accounts
(Reconciliation of Equity).

8.4.2. Capital Work in progress:

Changes is due to reversal of foreign exchange gain/loss on non-monetary items (advances to contractors)
and transfer of directly attributable cost from administrative expenses. Please refer point 8.5, 8.6 and 11.1 of
the notes to accounts.

8.4.3. Other Current Assets:
Changes is due to reversal of foreign exchange gain/loss on non-monetary items (advances to contractors).
8.4.4. Retained Earnings:

Changes is due to revision in foreign exchange gain loss, addition of provision for accumulated leave of
employees and changes in depreciation. Also, refer point 8- Reconciliation of Equity.

8.4.5. Provisions:
Provision for leave encashment was not recognized eatlier on accrual basis which is now recognized.
Other Explanatory notes:

9.1.  Increases in Project Cost:

Initially, the project cost was estimated as NPR 35,290 Million (excluding interest during construction). But
due to change in design, price escalation, quantity variation, changes in foreign exchange rate, prolongation of
construction period due to massive earthquake of 2072 and blockade in Nepal- India Border area, the project
costs have been revised to NPR 49,296 Million (excluding interest during construction) which is approved by
the Board of the Directors dated Chaitra 30, 2074.
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Comparison between the original cost estimate and revised cost estimate is as follows:

Contract / Previous Estimate

Revised Estimate (December 2017)

Increase or Decrease
w.r.t. Contract /

S. Previous Estimate
N Item Total Total Total P
: FC Portion | LC Portion . FC Portion | LC Portion ol ol e
5 (Rs.) Equivalent S or €) (Rs.) Equivalent in | Equivalentin | cen-
($or€) : in LC (Rs.) . LC (Rs.) LC (Rs) | tage
A | Lot 1 Civil Works $129,662,659| 8,220,853,671| 17,970,189,008 | $154,190,451 | 10,104,226,722| 21,697,806,726| 3,727,617,718| 20.7%
B |Lot 2 Hydromechinical Works | €12,668219|  340929,660| 1,607,498,182| €14397,216|  746,846475| 2,186,280,088|  578,781,907| 36.0%
C %%ifl““om“hamcal $104,597,004|  373,667,294| 7,826,267,954| $92,186,461|  551493.273| 7,119,778,647| -706,489,307| -9.0%
D |Lot4T/LandS/S Works $21485798|  637,879,056| 2,543454482| $200227,792|  771312,668| 2,565,315,519 21,861,037| 0.9%
$255,746,361 $266,604,704
E |Sub-Total (=A+B+C+D) 9,573,329,681| 29,947,409,625 12,173,879,138 | 33,569,180,980 | 3,621,771,355| 12.1%
€12,668,219 €14,397,216
ERlEassss Road and 0| 1,762,702,759| 1,762,702,759 0| 1,960,854,750| 1,960,854,750|  198,151,991| 11.2%
Infrastructure
G E;ifrfsz and Construction | g1 o5 758l 809.042352| 2,141,003.821| $30485.872| 1252740912| 3,552,809.971| 1,411,806,150| 65.9%
H | Owner's Administration Costs 0| 1,150,000,000| 1,150,000,000 0| 1,717,782,545| 1,717,782,545| 567,782,545 | 49.4%
Land Acquisition,
I |Environmental Mitigation & 0| 408,480,000 408,480,000 0| 458,105273| 458,105,273 49,625,273\ 12.1%
Management
J |Sub-Total (=F+G+H+I) $17,654,758| 4,130,225,111| 5,462,276,580 | $30,485,872| 5,389,483,481| 7,689,642,540| 2,227,365,959| 40.8%
273,401,119 297,090,576
K |Total (=E+]) $ == 13,703,554,792 | 35,409,686,205 8 17,563,362,619| 41,258,823,520| 5,849,137,314| 16.5%
€12,668,219 €14,397,216
Additional Contingencies $7,427,264
L [@25%ofItems E, G & H 0 0 0 378,610,065  970,996,587| 970,996,587
above) in Revised Estimate €359,930
Additional Cost in Rupees
(Rs.) incurred due to
devaluation of Rs. in
M . 0 0 0 0 7,065,723,002| 7,065,723,002
comparison to Base Exchange
Rates in items A to D and G
above in Revised Estimate
N |Total (=L+M 0 0 STAZT,208| e 610,065 8,036,719,589| 8,036,719,589
ota (_ ) €359,930 > ) ’ ’ y 'y 6] £
273,401,119 304,517,841
O |Grand Total (=K+N) $ e 13:703,554,792 | 35,409,686,205 $€14 o 1ag| 10972684 | 49,295,543,109| 13,885,856,904| 39.2%
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Breakdown of Increase (+) or Decrease () in different components of project cost / Estimate because of change in BOQ & estimate, Price adjustment,
Foreign Exchange fluctuation etc. is as follows:

TABLE SHOWING BREAKDOWN OF COST INCREMENT

Rs. 72 '000
Increase (+) or Decrease (-) in different components w.r.t. Additional
Contract/Estimate before estimated loss due to devaluation Estimated Cost Increase or
due to devaluation | Decrease w.r.t.
S.N. |Item . Value . . of Rs. in Contract /
BOQ and .Prlce Added Customs | Withholding Total comparison to Previous
Estimate | Adjustment Tax Duty Tax (WHT) Base Exchange Estimate
(VAT) Rates
A | Lot 1 Civil Works 2,082,534 1,216,243 428,841 - - 3,727,618 3,158,126 6,885,743
B | Lot 2 Hydromechanical Works 363,927 126,901 47,687 40,267 - 578,782 294,808 873,590
C | Lot 3 Electromechanical Works (304,690) (430,890) 7,091 22,000 - (706,489) 2,715,404 2,008,915
D |Lot4T/LandS/S Works 73,943 (145,177) 8,596 84,498 - 21,861 264,782 286,643
E |Sub-Total (=A+B+C+D) 2,215,714 767,077 492,216 146,765 - 3,621,771 6,433,120 10,054,891
F | Access Road and Infrastructure 198,152 - - - - 198,152 - 198,152
G |Engincering and Construction 1,055,046 152,555| 156,988 - 47218 1,411,806 632,603 2,044,409
Supervision
H | Owner's Administration Costs 567,783 - - - - 567,783 - 567,783
I qud Acqulsmon, Environmental 49,625 i i i i 49,625 i 49,625
Mitigation & Management
J | Sub-Total (=F+G+H+I) 1,870,606 152,555 156,988 - 47,218 2,227,366 632,603 2,859,969
K |Total (ZE+]) 4,086,320 919,631 649,204 146,765 47,218 5,849,137 7,065,723 12,914,860
Additional Contingencies (2.5%
1. |of Items E, G & H above) in 970,997 - - - - 970,997 - 970,997
Revised Estimate
M | Grand Total (=K+L) 5,057,316 919,631 649,204 146,765 47,218 6,820,134 7,065,723 13,885,857
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9.2. Unsettled amount of the contractors:

The company has assigned various contractors to construct the access road and bridges splitting the whole
task into different packages. Though the task assigned has already been completed, the payment is yet to be
tinalized since the contractors of Package A and Package B of Dolakha—Singati Segment have demanded
additional amount. The total amount of their demand is NPR 33.47 Million which is yet to be finalized by the
company. Similarly, the final payment of Package I and Package IV of Singati — Lamabagar Segment is yet to
be finalized.

9.3. Interim Reporting

Interim reports have been reported in accordance with the requirements of Securities Board of Nepal
(SEBON) and Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE). These requirements are materially aligned with the
provisions of NAS 34.

9.4. Related Party Transactions:
Name of Related Parties

Nepal Electricity Authority, Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited, Rastriya Beema Sansthan, and Citizen
Investment Trust are in the capacity of both promoter shareholders and lenders of the company. During the
year, the company has received total loan of NPR 3,116.58 Million. Amount owed by the company to related
patties at the end of F/Y 2074 /75 is NPR 20,500 Million and the interest owed on such loan to those related
parties is NPR 8,746.49 Million.

The closing balance of bridge gap loan received from CIT at the end of F/Y 2074/75 is NPR 500 Million and
the interest owed on such loan is NPR 1,81,45,994.

Long Term Loans (Secured and Unsecured):

The details of secured and unsecured loan from related parties are as follows:

S. Name of the related Opening L'oan . Closing balance
N. patty balance ofloan | received in of loan as on Remarks
as on 01.04.2074 | F.Y 2074/75 32.03.2075
1 |Nepal Doorsanchar 5,215,025,708| 784,974,292 6,000,000,000 | Secured loan
Company Ltd. INTC)
2 |Rastriya Beema Sansthan 1,738,341,491| 261,658,509 2,000,000,000 | Secured loan
3 |Nagarik Lagani 1,738,341,922| 261,658,078 2,000,000,000 | Secured loan
Kosh(CIT)
4 | Government of Nepal via 10,000,000,000| 500,000,000 10,500,000,000 | Unsecured loan
NEA (Against the
guarantee of NEA)
Total 18,691,709,120 | 1,808,290,880 20,500,000,000
Capitalized Interest:
The details of interest capitalized for loan received from related parties is as follows:
Opening balance of Interest Closing balance of
S.N. Name of the related party interest capitalized | capitalized in |interest capitalized
as on 01.04.2074 |the F.Y 2074/75| as on 32.03.2075
1 |Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd. 1,929,126,856 809,200,584 2,738,327,440.19
(NTC)
2 |Rastriya Beema Sansthan 605,017,596 264,984,755 870,002,351.47
3 |Nagarik Lagani Kosh(CIT) 759,635,198 342,795,385 1,102,430,583.37
4 | Government of Nepal via NEA 2,724.808,117 1,310,918,339 4,035,726,456.41
Total 6,018,587,768 2,727,899,063 8,746,486,831
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Short Term Borrowing:

Opening Closing
balance of Loan balance of
S.N. | Name of the related party 1 received in 1 Remarks
0anason | gy o074 /75 oan as on
01.04.2074 32.03.2075
1 Nagarik Lagani Kosh (CIT) - 500,000,000 | 500,000,000 | Unsecutred Loan
9.5. Directors and Key Management Personnel
A. Directors
S.N | Name Designation Representation
1 Mzr. Kul Man Ghising Chairman Nepal Electricity Authority
2 Mzt. Tulasi Prasad Gautam Member Employee Provident Fund
3 Mz. Dilliram Adhikari Member Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited
4 Mzr. Sunil Kumar Dhungel Member Nepal Electricity Authority
5 Mr. Jagadishwar Man Singh Member Nepal Electricity Authority
6 Mzr. Lekhanath Koirala Member Nepal Electricity Authority
B. Key Management Personnel
1 Mr. Bigyan Prasad Shrestha CEO
2 Mzr. Dinesh Jung Rana Project Chief
Compensation to Key Management Personnel of the Company amounts to NPR 30,38,247.87 and
NPR.48,97,314.68 during fiscal year 2073/74 and 2074/75 respectively.
Total allowance to Directors amounts to NPR 6,16,000 and NPR. 7,76,000 during F.Y. 2073/74 and 2074/75
respectively.
9.6. Disclosure on Financial Instruments and Risk Management

NFRS 7 is applicable on Financial Instruments. The definition of Financial Instruments is inclusive and cover
financial assets and liabilities. The Company’s business activities is exposed to variety of financial risks,
namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, liquidity and credit risk,
which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company’s Board and senior
management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management. The Company’s risk management practices are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies/practices and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The risk management is done by the company's management that
provides assurance that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate practices &
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with company's risk
objectives.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities primarily trade receivables, advances and from its financing activities including loans given to its
employees. The company practices of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The company's
exposure and credit worthiness of counterparties are continuously monitored & analysed.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk id the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. In order to control & mitigate the liquidity risk and for
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better working capital management, the company has made arrangement of short-term loan from EPF, CIT
and Nabil bank Limited. The company's finance department regularly monitors the liquidity position to
ensure it has sufficient cash on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus generated by
the operating entities., over and above the amount required for working capital management and other
operational requirements, are retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is
invested in interest bearing term deposits.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrtument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise mainly following types of risk:

Currency rate risk
Interest rate risk and

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in the exchange rates. The company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign
currency values impact the company's transactions/events relating to import of inventoties, property plant &
equipment and services. The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollar and Euro, however the company has not entered into any
forward contracts to mitigate such risks.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in the market
interest rates relates primarily to the company's long-term and short-term debt obligations. Since, the interest
rate risk is influenced by external forces, which is beyond the company's control, UTKHPL manages its
interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Long term
borrowing has been taken from GON (through NEA) and other government corporations and the interest
rate charged by such authorities is lower than the prevalent interest rate charged by commercial banks &

institutions. The company mitigates the risk through negotiations with such authorities on reasonable periods.
9.7.  Remaining Capital Commitment:

Remaining value of capital commitments made by the company with the contractors is as follows:

S. Name of Summary of Revised Remaining
No. Contractor Contract No. work Currency | Contract Amount
Amount
1 |Norconsult AS UTKHEP/CS/ |Consultancy NPR 653,583,031 28,600,326
Lahmeyer Int'l 01-2065/066 USD 25,883,573 1,641,862
GmbH JV
2 |Sino Hydro UTKHEP/ 03- | Main Civil NPR | 13,371,775,235| 1,566,636,285
Corporation 2064/065 | Works
Limited
3 | Texmaco Rail & UTKHEP/ 04- | Hydro- NPR 292,068,057| 176,511,221
Engineering Ltd. 2066/067 Mechanical EURO 10,574,458 3,769,118
Works
4 | Andritz Hydro UTKHEP/ 05- | Electro- NPR 334,155,022 41,502,145
GmbH 2066/067 Mechanical USD 87,164,920 11,918,516
Works
5 |KEC International | UTKHEP/ 14- |'TL & NPR 565,380,774| 141,776,138
Litd. 2066/067 Substation USD 19,971,745 4,355,485
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- ___________________________________________________________________________NE8
S. Name of Summary of Revised Remaining
Contract No. Currency | Contract
No. Contractor work Amount
Amount
6 |Masding Devi UTKHEP/CW |Construction of |  NPR 14,960,701 2,097,478
Nirman Sewa / NCB-03-  |School Building
073/74
7 | Sky Builders Pvt. UTKHEP/CW |Construction of |  NPR 10,576,818.60| 10,576,818.60
Ltd. / NCB-04- | Police Station
074/75 Building
NPR | 15,242,499,639| 1,968,300,411
Total USD 133,020,238 17,915,862
EURO 10,574,458 3,769,118
9.8. Rolwaling Diversion Project:
UTKHPL has obtained the survey license on 2074.05.21 from DoED for conducting the survey of Rolwaling
diversion by 2076.05.20 for generation of additional 22 megawatt of electricity. In the 180% board meeting
dated 2074/05/29, it was decided to utilize the 200-meter water head of Rolwaling tiver for diversion and
generation of additional 22-megawatt electricity.
9.9. Subsequent Event:
There has not been any significant reportable event after the reporting date which requires to be either
adjusted or disclosed.
9.10. Limitations of NFRS
During NFRS implementation, wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop
the same would exceed the benefit derived, if any, has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.
9.11. Approval of Financial Statements:

The accompanied financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on Baishakh 15, 2076 ( April 28, 2019) and have been recommended for
approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Mukunda Adhikari Suresh Raj Khakurel Bigyan Prasad Shrestha
Account Chief Finance Chief Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directors
Lekhanath Koirala Jagadishwar Man Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Member Member Member
Dillirtam Adhikari Tulasi Prasad Gautam Kul Man Ghising
Member Member Chairman

Auditors
As per our report of even date

CA. T.P.Adhikari
T.P. Adhikari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. B.K. Agrawal
B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2076/01/15
Place: Kathmandu

e anftleh yfddigst 311.cf. oLy /oY



ll 3t dmrehiRil gigaiaeR fofics



ol amof aeivay WIS

i 1. 8899808, ey ol 850

cloral Rera smaisren vanfag mmm ,
foreprrer aiReas 9,09 £0 000 ey TERUT IRR aishic m
Tt e bl o

= i ;R 3 o0 wh |

p— a8 I
a0 e o R ge
- |TOIE3T ates! [Gifoes
[ T \ -

SUNRISE CAPITAL LTD.
G b Pyt Mt

Wi fiveenigren grort (=) gaeen

e Whlal 5. 889968, lh‘am ol. BE994ER

\"r" N/AL

N 02 NN AN aRUIEE®! cifdr [eramrre R vdm)

A \\\ f;, \\m‘, q.YT,TY.000 [har AREMR0T AR disthic dRishd:

Y Y X (m=mmmﬂmml il 20614/0K/99 IR m:l‘!:ﬂa:uolm
\
\

\\\ 'f"‘

\ :

& o tren fizh) e 1 ereaeren vz [ paows
N . & 2 I ; \ oIS afica [Sfies
2 '} .\“R‘ -
7 EN

) e % " ¥ SUMRISE CAPITAL LTD:
\J7 ?-1'-"\"!,*.\?‘3, 2 Y = s o

\ 'f’

NI
ARY

y L/ \ _
AR B
alls ¥ \ls, — —

_———_—-——-"—_“‘_
P ot . S o . Rl il 5.!.\;

e anfden gfddget 3tr.cf. Ro6Y /oy



\.\
oGl U UIgy S RS

. ¢

J

%
W
W
5




e anfden gfddget 3tr.cf. Ro6Y /oy



gl BN !;_#dk-'&

3R dmrehiRi g foifics



31UR dididrRll sissIuaR fetfdes

31AlGicitehl grfaidion faazor
(faeqa sfeaiforaRy Base IgaR)
st fRm : Py = o ReR
AT WIS ;4 MReUfedT, SR, oW, THRYR A5G
O WY /A WH . OHETR
o fgaE w1 wH : TR, BHEETR
SIfSd & : 8yg FIEIE
va aiffe s : Q¢ IMEre "vel Ay awd)
79 TS DR R
IESIEREEE] AT L
KL
O TRUGH! TOMR &7 ¢ qosy T fhfA
O AT WIY® IAd 9819 ¢ 989 g [R
o dif¥e AHd T8E : geR g /A
o feomsa s g=@ : ¢¢y g9 []. (9,000 B Return Period)
T (B, x 3.) : goo A xR M
STOTRRID] &HdT © 9Q B HAHeR
argar s g : oHTg Y M, dreTg 26 ML @1 gEaer akmEe
bk
o ®HEg 1 ¢y frorfer
o &N 1 g e (@ ey I 32 TifReR)
UTRED 0oy AR (g @ 3.6 )
fagaEe & x4 xS s f x a3 xy M@
S g caigd (YeeA) : g gel
coNY gogobl oHlg : ®Ra 3 b M@
SIS g1 IRl BIgd : R0 BN S¥@ Afde, vo B (MRER Rawh Feey=a=)
fmfor erafd : oy gf
yqeT q1f . gR®ede FMER §¢ fafd (aRPe-qowr gy fbfA,

Soal-RHTe 3y B ¥ Rd-omER ey M)



R AATORN B3R fafdes
UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Kathmandu Office:

Annapurna Marg, Gyaneswor, Kathmandu
Tel.: 977-1-4421988, 4420295

Fax: 977-1-4412569

E-mail: neautp@mos.com.np

URL: www.tamakoshihydro.org.np

Bier Glory: [V give

anifereei) dieTidrRi Sictfded 3TR—NGTel
UPPER TAMAKOSHI HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT
Project Office:

Gongar, Dolakha

Tel.: 9944 90004, 049-4130001/10
Fax: 9944 90005

Lamabagar: 9944 90006/7
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